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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders and Couneil of the Private Joint Stock Commercial Bank “Invest Finance Bank™

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Private Joint Stock
Commercial Bank “Invest Finance Bank"” (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the
“Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 2014 and
the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion,

Opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2014, and its financial performance

and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.
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Audit Organization “PricewaterhouseCoopers” LLC
12 April 2015
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

Audit Organization “PricewaterhouseCoopers” LLC

884, Mustaqillik prospect, Mirzo-Ulughek District, Tashkent 100000, Republic of Uzbekistan
T: +998 (71) 120 6101, F: +998 (71) 120 6645, www.pwe.com/uz



Private Joint Stock Commercial Bank “Invest Finance Bank" and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 December 31 December 1 January
2014 2013 2013
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums MNote Restated Restated
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalentz T 98,453,914 124,400,382 83602103
Due from other banks B 98,453,448 70,630,260 41,840,037
Loans and advances to customers g 252948413 202,531,758 91,166,108
Invastmeant s ecurities available for sale 10 5,197 408 3,367 408 3,040,000
Currentincome tax prepaymenls 309,973 - -
Deferred income Exasseis 25 864,911 349,735 256,244
Fremises, equipment and Intangible assets 1 67,582,767 70,379,432 27,632 867
Reinsurers' share of reserves for insurance coniracis 12 2,526,047 6,385,682 -
Other assets 13 10,825,517 13,931,374 B, 503,749
TOTAL ASSETS 537,763,398 481,876,040 246,051,008
LIABILITIES
Due o other banks 14 117,031,380 72,894,515 27,143,783
Customer accounts 15 307.006,443 327,053,008 177,744,161
Debt securities in issue 16 25,032 516 13,880,414 14,633,405
Advances from lessees 494,934 227,792 448,508
Reserves for insurance contracts 17 14,620,827 15,426,633 -
Other liabilites 18 4,351,175 7,143,451 TB7.548
TOTAL LIABILITIES 468,537,335 436,625,814 220,755,495
EQUITY
Share caplital 19 60,000,000 44,131,357 23,270,678
Share capital resene . 2,022,981 -
Share premium 18 1,273,780 1,273,780 230,746
Other insurance resenes 19 3,560,920 3,493 650 -
Retained earnings 466,539 1,310,365 1,794,088
MNetassets atfributable to the Bank's owners 65,301,239 52,238,134 25295513
Mon-contralling interest 3,924,824 3,112,092 -
TOTAL EQUITY 69,226,063 55,350,226 25,285,513
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 537,763,398 491,976,040 246,051,008
‘\'nl
Approved for Issue and signed onf10 April 2ﬁ1 8:
By Z.5, Umarova M.
Chairman of the Board Chief Accountant

The notes set out on pages 5 1o 58 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,



Private Joint Stock Commercial Bank “Invest Finance Bank" and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2014 2013
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums Mote Restated
interestincome 20 26,762,177 27,130,752
interest expense 20 (22,810,991) (16914,785)
Met interest income 13,951,186 10,215,967
Provision for loan impairment g (249 857) {864,754)
Met interest income after provision for loan impairment 13,701,329 8351213
Fee and commission income 21 24,291 666 21525373
Fee and commission expense 21 (3.591,841) (2,961,639)
Insurance operations income 22 14,182,682 0.944 TE3
Insurance operations expanse 22 (7.883,669) (4,998 481)
Foreign exchange translation gains less losses 2,704,308 1859672
Provision forimpairment losses on other operations 13 (256,574) (1,253.212)
Dividend income 115,682 138,097
Other operating income 23 3,105,547 6,375,743
Adminis frative and other operaling expenses 24 (36.155,374) (27,033,960)
Profit before tax 10,203,771 12,946,559
Income tax expense 25 (2,040,347 (1,274,061)
PRORT FOR THE YEAR 8,163,424 11,672,498
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 8,163,424 11,672 498
Profit is attributable to:
- Owners of the Bank 7,350,692 11,034 588
= Non-controlling interest B12,732 637.o10
Profit for the year B,163,424 11,672,498
Total comprehensive income is attributable to:
- Owners of the Bank 7,350,692 11,034,588
- Mon-controlling interest B12,732 637,810
Total comprehensive income for the year 8,163,424 11,672,498
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share
{expressed in UZS per share) 27 153 324
The notes sel out on pages 5 to 59 form an inlegral part of these consolidated financial statements. 2
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Private Joint Stock Commercial Bank “Invest Finance Bank™ and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows - 31 December 2014

2014 2013
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums Note Restated
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 35,731,410 28,278,039
Interest paid (22,750,251) (17¥.,784,863)
Fee and commission received 22,850 866 22.278,202
Fee and commission pald {3,591,841) (2.961,639)
Income received from insurance operations 15,881,394 11,768,556
Expense paid on insurance operations (6,538,542) (4,464,407)
Other operating income received 2,525,580 5669614
Staffcosts paid (15,.463,593)  (13,321,307)
Adminisfrative and other operafing expenses paid (16,840,081) (12,014,505)
Income tax paid [(3,450,149) (1,300,382)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities 8,354,783 16,147,298
Net (increase)/decreases in:
- due from other banks (26,911,570) (28,517,158)
- loans and advances 1o customers (33,368,517 (113,154,581)
- other assels (1,307 25T {357.8964)
Netincrease/{decrease] in:
- due to other banks 44 250,229 45 044 897
- pustomer accounts (20,118,568) 145599534
- debt securities in issue 11.050,000 {750,000)
- advances from |lessees 267 202 227,792
- pther liabilites (2.638,455) {410,110}
MNet cash (used in)ffrom operating activities (20,422,153) 63,825,708
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, equipment and intangible assets 11 (25,828673) (47113,157)
Proceeds from disposal of property, equipment and intangible aszets 11 10,921,436 911,305
Acquisition of investment securities available for sale 10 (1.880,000) {100,610)
Proceeds from disposal of investment securities available for sale 10 50,000 2545518
Dividend income received 115,692 138,007
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquirad - 1,586,637
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary, net of disposed cash 3,605,250 -
Met cash used in investing activities {13,016,295) (39,032,210)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issuance of ordinary shares 19 5712.413 12,600,013
Dividends paid 26 - (762,194)
Met cash from financing activities 5,712,413 11,837,819
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1,779,567 4162962
MNet increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (25,946,468) 40,798,279
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 7 124,400,382 83,602,103
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year T 98,453,914 124,400,382
Mon-cash transactions:
Capitalisation of dividends 8,133,249 8,303,700
Share subscription deposit - 2,022.981
The notes setout on pages 5 1o 59 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 4



Private Joint Stock Commercial Bank “Invest Finance Bank" and its subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2014

1 Intreduction

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2014 for Private Joint Stock Commercial Bank
“Invest Finance Bank” (the "Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group").

The Bank was incorporated and is domiciled in Uzbekistan. The Bank is a private joint stock company
limited by shares and was set up in accordance with Uzbekistan regulations. As of 31 December 2014
and 2013 the Bank was ultimately controlled by Mr Mamadjanov Fakhritdin Djurasvich,

Principal activity. The Group's principal business activity is commercial and retail banking operations
within Uzbekistan. The Bank has operated under a full banking licence issued by the Central Bank of
Uzbekistan ("CBU") # 75 since 24 December 2007. The Bank participates in the state deposit insurance
scheme, which was introduced by Law of the Republic of Uzbekistan # 360-11 “Insurance of Individuals
Bank Deposits” dated 5 April 2002. The State Deposit Insurance Fund guarantees repayment of 100% of
individual deposits regardless of the deposit amount in the case of the withdrawal of a licence of 2 Bank.

Registered address and place of business. The Bank's registersd address is: 188, Navoi Strest,
Tashkent 100011, Uzbekistan. The Bank has eight (2013: five) branches within Uzbekistan.

Presentation currency. These consolidated financial statements are presented in Uzbekistan Soum
("UZS"), unless otherwise stated.

Subsidiaries. The Bank's subsidiaries comprise the fallowing enterprises:

Ownership Ownership Country Industry
Mame 2014 2013
LLC “Infin Leasing™ 100.0% 100.0%  Uszbekistan Leasing
LLC “Asia Insurance™ 62.2% 62.2% Uzbekistan insurance
LLC "Tashkent Trans Avto” 0.0% 100.0%  Uzbekistan Loglstics

2 Operating Environment of the Group

Republic of Uzbekistan. The Uzbekistan economy displays characteristics of an emerging market,
including but net limited to, a currency that is not freely convertible outside of the country and a low level
af liquidity in debt and equity markets. Also, the banking sector in Uzbekistan is particularly impacted by
local political, legisiative, fiscal and regulatory developmenis.

The largest Uzbek banks are state - controlled and act as Government agents to develop the country's
economy. The Government distributes funds from the country's budaet, which flow through the banks to
various government agencies, and other state and privately owned entities.

The Bank’s financial position and operating results will continue to be affected by future political and
economic developments in Uzbekistan including the application and interpretation of existing and future
legislation and tax regulations which greatly impact Uzbek financial markets and the economy overall.
Management is unable to predict all developments which could have an impact on the banking sector and
generally on the financial position of the Bank in particular.

The ongeing uncertainty and volatility of the financial markets, in particular in Eurasia, and other risks
could have significant negative effects on the Uzbekistan financial and corporate sectors.

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the initial recognition of financial instruments based on fair value. The principal accounting policies
applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These palicies
have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated (refer to Note 5).




Private Joint Stock Commercial Bank “Iinvest Finance Bank" and its subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2014

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are thase investess, including structured entities, that
the Group controls because the Group (i) has power o direct relevant activities of the investees that
significantly affect their returns, (i} has exposure, or rights, to variable retums from its involvement with
the investees, and (iii) has the ability to use its power over the investees to affect the amount of investor's
returns. The existence and effect of substantive rights, including substantive potential voting rights, are
considered when assessing whether the Group has power over another entity. For a right to be
substantive, the holder must have practical ability to exercise that right when decisions about the direction
of the relevant activities of the investee need to be made, The Group may have power over an investes
even when it holds less than majority of voting power in an investee. In such a case, the Group assesses
the size of its voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders to
determine if it has de-facto power over the investee. Protective rights of other investors, such as those
that relate to fundamental changes of investee's activities or apply only in exceptional circumstances, do
not prevent the Group from controlling an investee. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group, and are deconsolidated from the date on which control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries other than
those acquired from parties under common cantrol. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in & business combination are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irespective of the extent of any non-controlling interast.

The Group measures non-contralling interest that represents present ownership interest and antitles the
holder to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation on a transaction by transaction
basis, either at: (a) fair value, or (b) the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of net assats of the
acquiree. Non-controlling interests that are not present ownership interests are measured at fair value.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the cost cannot be recovered. The Bank and all
of its subsidiaries use uniform accounting policies consistent with the Group's policies.

Mon-controlling interest is that part of the net results and of the equity of a subsidiary attributable to
interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Bank. Non-controlling interest forms a
separate component of the Group's equity,

Disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. When the Group ceases to have contral or
significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair valus, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carmying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity, ars
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are recycled to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive Income are reclassified
to profit or loss, where appropriate.

Financial instruments - key measurement terms. Depending on their classification financial
instruments are carried at fair value or amortised cost as described below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderdy
transaction betwesen market participants at the measurement date. The best evidence of fair value is price
in an active markel. An active market is one in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information an an ongoing basis.

Fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is measured as the product of the quoted
price for the individual asset or liability and the quantity held by the entity. This is the case even if a
market's normal daily trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the quantity held and placing orders to sell
the position in a single transaction might affect the quoted price.




Private Joint Stock Commercial Bank “invest Finance Bank” and its subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis — 31 December 2014

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A portfolio of financial derivatives or other financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active
market is measured at the fair value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of
the price that would be received te sell a net long position (ie an asset) for a particular risk exposure or
paid lo transfer @ net short position (ie a liability) for a particular risk exposure in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. This is applicable for assets carried at fair value
on a recurring basis if the Group: (a) manages the group of financial assets and financial liabilities on the
basis of the entity's net exposure to a particular market risk (or risks) or to the credit risk of a particular
counterparty in accordance with the entity's documented risk management or investment strategy: (b) it
provides information on that basis about the group of assets and liabilities to the entity’'s key management
personnel; and (c) the market risks, including duration of the entity's exposure to a particular market risk
{or risks) arising from the financial assets and financial liabilities is substantially the same.

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent arm's lengtn
transactions or consideration of financial data of the investess, are used to measure fair value of certain
financial instruments for which external market pricing information is not available. Fair valus
measuremenls are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are measurements
at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, (i) level twao
measuremants are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and (iii} level three
measurements are valuations not based on solely observable market data (that is, the maasurement
requires significant uncbservable inputs). Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are desmed
to have occurred at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Note 33,

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to
acquire an assel at the time of its acquisition and includes transaction costs. Measurement at cost is only
applicable to investments In equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price and whose fair
value cannct be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to, and must be settled by, delivery of
such unguoted equity instruments, Refer to Notes 4 and 10,

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal
of a financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction
had not taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including
employees acting as selling agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and
securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums or
discounts, financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs,

Amorlised cost is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognised at initial recognition less
any principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any write-down for incurred
impairment losses. Accrued interest includes ameortisation of transaction costs deferrad at initial
recognition and of any premium or discount to maturity amount using the effective interest method.
Accrued interest income and accrued interest expense, including both accrued coupeon and amortised
discount or premium {including fees deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are
included in the carrying values of related items in the statement of financial position,

The effective interest mathod is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period, so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the
carrying amount.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
(excluding future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, if
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate discounts
cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest repricing date, except for the premium or
discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in the instrument, or other
variables that are not reset to markel rates, Such premiums or discounts are amortised over the whole
expected life of the instrument. The present value calculation includes all fees paid or received betwean
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.




Private Joint Stock Commercial Bank “Invest Finance Bank" and its subsidiaries
Notes fo the Consolfidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2014

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Initial recognition of financial instruments. The Group's financial instruments are initially recorded at
fair value plus transaction costs. Fair value at initial recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price.
A gain or loss on initial recognition is only recorded If there is a difference between fair valus and
transaction price which can be evidenced by other observable current market transactions in the same
instrument or by a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from obsarvable markets.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention (“regular way" purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which is
the date on which the Group commits to deliver a financial asset. All other purchases are recognised
when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Derecognition of financial assets. The Group derecognises financial assets when (a) the assets are
redeemed or the rights to cash flows from the assets otherwise expired or (b) the Group has transferred
the rights to the cash flows from the financial assets or entered into a gualifying pass-through
arrangement while (1) also transferring substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (i)
neither transferring nor retaining substantially all risks and rewards of ownarship, but not retaining contro.
Control is retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to
an unrelated third party without needing to impose restrictions on the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalenis are items which are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, Cash and cash
equivalents include all interbank placements with original maturities of less than three months. Funds
restricted for a period of more than three months on origination are excluded from cash and cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost.

The payments or receipts presented in the statement of cash flows represent transfers of cash and cash
equivalents by the Group, including amounts charged or credited to current accounts of the Group's
counterparties held with the Group, such as loan interest income or principal collected by charging the
customer's current account or interest payments or disbursement of loans credited to the customer's
current account, which represents cash or cash equivalent from the customer's perspective,

Due from other banks. Amounts due from other banks are recorded when the Group advances money
to counterparty banks with no intention of trading the resulting unguoted non-derivative receivable due on
fixed or determinable dates. Amounts due from other banks are carmied at amortised cost.

Cue from other banks include all interbank placements with original maturities of more than three months,
restricted cash and mandatory deposits with the CBU. Mandatory deposits with the CBU are camied at
amortised cost and represent non-interest bearing mandatory reserve depaosits which are not available to
finance the Group's day to day operations, and hence are not considered as part of cash and cash
equivalents for the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Loans and advances fo customers. Loans and advances to customers are recorded when the Group
advances money to purchase or originate an unguoted non-derivative receivable from a customer due on
fixed or determinable dates, and has no intention of trading the recsivable. Loans and advances to
cusiomers are camied at amortised cost.

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost. Impairment losses are recognisad in profit
or loss for the year when incurred as a result of one or more events (“loss events”) that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset and which have an impact on the amount or timing of the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. If the Group determines that no cbjective evidence exists that impairment was incurred for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics, and collectively assesses them for impairmeant. The
primary faciors that the Group considers In determining whether a financial asset is impaired are its
overdue status and realisability of related collateral, if any.
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The following other principal criteria are also used to determine whether there is objective evidence that
an impairment loss has occurred:
- any instalment i5 overdue and the late payment cannot be attributed to a delay caused by the
settlement systems:;
- the borrower experiences a significant financial difficulty as evidenced by the borrower's financial
infarmation that the Group obtains;
- the borrower considers bankruptcy or a financial rearganisation;
- there is an adverse change in the payment status of the borrower as a result of changes in the
national or local economic conditions that impact the borrower; or
- the value of collateral significantly decreases as a result of deteriorating marketl conditions,

Far the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of
similar credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows
for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debiors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to
the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated,

Future cash flows in @ group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment, are
estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets and the experience of management in
respect of the extent to which amounts will become overdue as a result of past loss svents and the
success of recovery of overdue amounts. Past experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable
data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect past periods, and to remove the effects
of past condilions that do not exist currantly.

If the terms of an impaired financial asset held at amortised cost are renegotiated or otherwise modified
because of financial difficulties of the borrower or issuer, impairment is measured using the original
effective interest rate before the modification of terms. The renegotiated asset is then derecognized and a
new asset is recognized al its fair value only if the risks and rewards of the asset substantially changed.
This is normally evidenced by a substantial difference between the present values of the original cash
flows and the new expected cash flows.

Impairment losses are always recognised through an allowance account to write down the asset's
carrying amount to the present value of expected cash flows (which exclude future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate of the asset. The calculation of the
present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less cosis for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or nat
foreclosure is probable.

If, in @ subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor's credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss Is reversed by adjusting the allowancs
account through profit or loss for the year,

Uncollectible assets are writlen off against the related impairment loss provision after all the necessary
procedures to recover the asset have been completed and the amount of the |oss has been determined.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to impairment loss account in profit
or loss for the year.

Repossessed collateral. Repossessed collateral represents financial and non-financial assets acquired
by the Group in settlement of overdue loans. The assets are initially recognised at fair value when
acquired and included in premises and equipment, ather financial assets, investment properties or
inventories within other asssts depending on their nature and the Group's intention in respect of recovery
of these assets, and are subsequently remeasured and accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policies for these categories of asseats,
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Where repossessed collateral results in acquiring contral over a business, the business combination is
accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting with fair value of the settled loan representing
the cost of acquisition (refer to the accounting policy for consclidation). Accounting policy for associates is
applied to repossessad shares where the Group obtains significant influence, but not control. The cost of
the associale is the fair value of the loan settled by repossessing the pledged shares,

Credit related commitments. The Group issues financial guarantees and commitments to provide loans.
Financial guarantees represen! irrevocable assurances to make payments in the event that a customer
cannot meet its abligations 1o third parties, and carry the same credit risk as loans. Financial guarantees
and commitmeants to provide a loan are initially recognised at their fair value, which is narmally evidenced
by the amount of fees received. This amount is amortised on a straight line basis over the life of the
commitment, except for commitments to originate loans if it is probable that the Group will enter into a
specific lending arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly after origination; such
loan commitment fees are deferred and included in the carrying value of the loan on initial recognition. At
the end of each reporting pericd, the commitments are measured at the higher of (i) the remaining
unamortised balance of the amount at initial recognition and {ii) the best estimale of expenditure required
to settle the commitment at the end of each reporting period.

Investment securities available for sale. This classification includes investment securities which the
Group intends to hold for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

Investment securities available for sale are carried at fair value. Interest income on available-for-sale debt
securities is calculated using the effective interest method, and recognised in profit or loss for the year,

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss for the year whan the
Group's right to receive payment is established and it is probable that the dividends will be collected. All
other elements of changes in the fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income until the
investment s derecognised or impaired, al which time the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
other comprehensive income to profit or loss for the year. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss for the year when incurred as a result of one or more events (“loss events”) that occurred after the
initial recognition of investment securities available for sale. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an equity security below its cost is an indicator that it is impaired. The cumulative impairment loss
— measured as the difference between the acguisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is reclassified from other comprehensive
income 1o profit or loss for the year. Impairment losses on equity instruments are not reversed and any
subsequent gains are recognised in other comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss for the year,

Premises and equipment. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and provision for impairment, where required.

Costs of minor repairs and day-lo-day maintenance are expensed when incurred. Costs of replacing
major parls or components of premises and equipment items are capitalised, and the replaced part is
retired.

At the end of each reporting pariod management assesses whether there is any indication of impairment
of premises and equipment. If any such indication exists, management estimates the recoverable
amount, which is determined as the higher of an asset's fair value less cosis to sell and its value in use,

The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognised In profit
or loss for the year to the extent it exceeds the previous revaluation surplus in equity. An impairment loss
recognised for an asset in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's value in use or fair value less costs o sell.
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Gains and losses on disposals determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount are recognised
in profit or loss for the year (within other operating income or expenses).

Depreciation. Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. Depreciation on other items of
premises and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives:

Wseful lives in years
Premises 20
Office and computer aquipment S50 10
Intangibie assets 20

The residual value of an assetl is the estimated amount that the Group would currently obtain from
disposal of the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the ags and in the
condition expected at the end of its useful life. The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,

Intangible assets. The Group's intangible assets other than goodwill have definite useful life and
primarily include capitalised computer software. Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. Development costs that
are directly associated with identifiable and unigue software controlled by the Group are recorded as
intangible assets if the inflow of incremental economic benefits exceeding costs is probable. Capitalised
costs include staffi costs of the software development team and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. All other costs associated with computer software, e.g. its maintenance, are expensed when
incurred.

Operating leases. Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership from the lessor to the Group, the total lease payments are
charged lo profit or loss for the year (rental expense) on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease,

Leases embedded in other agreements are separated if (a) fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific assel or assets and (b) the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the lease payments recsivable are recognised as
rental income on a straight-line basis over the leasa term;

Finance lease receivables. Where the Group is a lessor in a lease which transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee, the assets leased out are presented as a finance
lease receivable and carried at the present value of the future lease payments, Finance lease receivables
are initially recognised at commencement (when the lease term begins) using a discount rate determined
at inception (the earlier of the date of the |ease agreement and the date of commitment by the parties to
the principal provisions of the lease).

The difference between the gross receivable and the present value represents unearned finance income.
This income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax), which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Incremental costs directly attributable to negotiating and
arranging the lzase are included in the initial measuremeant of the finance lease receivable and reduce the
amount of income recognised over the lease term. Finance income from leases is recorded within interest
income in profit or loss for the year,

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss for the year when incurred as a result of one or more
events (“loss events”) that occurred after the initial recognition of finance lease receivables. The Group
uses the same principal criteria to determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has occurred, as for loans carried at amortised cost. Impairment losses are recognised through an
allowance account to write down the receivables’ net carrying amount to the present value of expected
cash fiows (which exclude future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted at the Interest
rates implicit in the finance leases. The estimated future cash flows reflect the cash flows that may result
from obtaining and selling the assets subject to the lease.
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Insurance contracts. Insurance confracts are those confracts that transfer significant insurance risk from
another party by agreeing to compensale the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely
affects the policyholder.

Description of insurance products. The Group offers insurance products covering all common
insurance risks. The Group's main lines of business are as follows:

motor insurance, including third party liability;
aircraft insurance;
property insurance;
loan repayments insurance;
construction insurance;
medical insurance;
« civil liability of employer.

Motor and property insurance ensures that Group customers are paid compensation for the damage
caused to their property. Customers are also indemnified for losses caused by their inability to use an
insured property in their economic activities as a result of the occurrence of an insured event (business
interruption).

Liability insurance contracts protect the Group’s customers against the risk of causing harm lo third
parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include both contractual and non-
contractual events. The typical protection offered Is designed for employers who become legally liable to
pay compensation to injured employees or society (employers’ liability) and for individual and business
customers who become liable to pay compensation to a third party for bodily harm or property damage
{public liability).

Basis of accounting for insurance activities.

Premiums written. Upon inception of a contract, premiums are recorded as written and are earmed on a
pro-rata basis over the term of the related policy coverage.

Provision for unearmed premiums. Provision for uneamed premiums represenis the proportion of
premiums written in the year that relate to unexpired terms of policies in force as at the reporting date,
calculated using “pro rata temporis” or “1/24" method. The "pro rata temporis” method includes calculation
of unearned premium in proporion to the remaining useful life of insurance contract at the balance sheet
date. The "1/24" method is determined by multiplying the iotal amount of the basic insurance premiums
on the coefficients which are defined for each subgroup as the ratio of not elapsed at the reporting date of
the term of the subgroup contracts to the whole duration of subgroup contracts.

Claims. Claims and claims handling expenses are charged to the consolidated income statement as
incurred based on the evaluated liability for compensalion payable to policyholders or third parties, net of
subrogation. Subrogation is a right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs related to the
claims seitlement process.

Loss provision. Loss provision represents the accumulation of estimates for ultimate losses and includes
provision for losses reported but not settled (‘RBNS™) and incurred but not yet reported (“IBNR").
Estimates of claims handling expenses are included in both RBNS and IENR. RENS is provided in
respect of claims reporied, but not settlied as at the reporting date. The estimation is made on the basis of
information recelved by the Group during investigation of insurance cases before or after the reporting
date. IBMR is determined by the Group by line of business, and includes assumptions based on prior
years' claims and claims handling experience. The methods of determining such estimates and
establishing the resulting provisions are continually reviewed and updated. Resulting adjustments are
reflected in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they arise. Loss provision is
estimated on an undiscounted basis due to the relatively quick pattern of claims notification and payment.

Stabilisation reserve. Reserve on compulsory insurance of civil liability of owners of vehicles and
compulsory insurance of eivil liability of the employer is designed to compensate expenses on insurance
claims payments in subsequent years. Charge to stabllisation reserve for the period is calculated on
portfolio basis based on results of insurance activities separately for each of the two insurance portfolios.
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If income exceeds expenses by 5% than the amount of the increase is charged as increase of the
stabilisation reserve for the period; if expenses exceed income than the difference is charged as
decrease of the stabilisation reserve for the period.

Reserve for preventive measures. This reserve is designed to finance events on prevention of accidents,
loss or damage to the insured property, as well as to finance other activities aimed at the waming and
prevention of occurrence of insurance claims. The reserve is compulsory for insurance of civil liability of
owners of vehicles and for insurance of civil liability of the employer, for other types of insurance it is
voluntary. Charge to reserve for the period is calculated on portfolio basis as 5% from the gross premium
written,

Equity component in insurance reserves. The nature of the reserve for preventive measures (the “RFPM")
component included into the calculation of the unearned premium reserve under the statutory
requirements is the same as the amount of liability for the RFPM under statutory requirements. For IFRS
purposes the amount of unearned premium is adjusted for the RFPM component by analogy to the
treatment of the RFPM accrued as liability, because the component does not comply with the definition of
either asset or liability and is accrued for future expenses of the Group. Similar to the presentation of the
RFPM, the RFFM component included into the unearned premium reserve is separately presented as a
component of equity.

Liability adequacy test. At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the
adequacy of the contract fiabilities. In performing these tests, the current best estimates of the future
contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income
from the assets backing such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income by subsequently establishing a provision for losses
arising from the liability adequacy tests.

Reinsurance. The Group assumes and cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business. Ceded
reinsurance confracts do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders. Amounts recoverable
from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured
insurance contracts and in accordance with the term of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets
include balances due from reinsurance companies for paid claims, inciuding claims handling expenses,
reinsurers’ share of loss provision and premiums ceded to the Group. Reinsurance payables are
obligations of the Group for the transfer of reinsurance premiums to rainsurers.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a regular basis. If there is objective
evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the camying amount of the
reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the consalidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Due to other banks. Amounts due to other banks are recorded when money or other assets are
advanced to the Group by counterparty banks. The non-derivative liability is carried at amortised cost,

Customer accounts. Customer accounts are non-derivative liabilities to individuals, state or corporate
customers and are carried at amoriised cost.

Debt securities in issue. Debt securities in issue include promissory notes, bonds, certificates of deposit
and debentures issued by the Group. Debt securities are stated at amortised cost,

Derivative financial instruments. The Group enters into offsetting loans with its counterparties to
exchange curencies. Such loans, while legally separate, are aggregated and accounted for as a single
derivative financial instrument (currency swap) on a net basis where (i) the loans are entered into at the
same time and in contemplation of one another, (ii) they have the same counterparty, (iil) they relats to
the same risk and (iv) there is no apparent business purpose for structuring the transactions separately
that could not also have been accomplished in a single transaction. Derivative financial instruments are
carried at their fair value.

All derivative instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive, and as liabilities when fair
value is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are included in profit or loss for the
year (gains less losses on derivatives). The Group does not apply hedge accounting.
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Income taxes. Income taxes have been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
Income tax charge comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognised in profit or loss for the year,
except if it is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity because it relates to
transactions that are also recognised, in the same or a different period, in other comprahensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax is the amount expacted to be paid to, or recovered from, the taxation authorities in respect of
taxable profits or losses for the current and prior periods. Taxable profits or losses are based on
estimates if the consolidated financial statements are authorised prior to filing relevant tax returns, Taxes
other than on income are recarded within administrative and other operating expenses.

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards and
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the initial recognition exemption, deferred taxes are
not recorded for temporary differences on initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction other
than a business combination if the transaction, when initially recorded, affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit. Deferred {ax balances are measured at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, which are expected to apply to the period when the temporary differences will
reverse or the tax loss carry forwards will be utilised, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted only
within the individual companies of the Group.

Deferred 1ax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss camy forwards are recorded only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductions can be
utilised.

Trade and other payables. Trade payables are accrued when the counterparty has performed its
obligations under the contract and are carried al amortised cost,

Share capital. Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares with discretionary dividends are
both classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Any excess of the fair value of consideration
received over the par value of shares issued is recorded as share premium in equity.

Dividends. Dividends are recorded in equity in the period in which they are declared. Any dividends
declared after the end of the reporting period and before the consolidated financial statements ara
authorised for issue, are disclosed in the subsequent events note.

Income and expense recognition. Interest income and expense are recorded for all debt instruments on an
accrual basis using the effective interest method. This method defers, as part of interest income or expense, all
fees paid or received between the parties 1o the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction casts and all other premiums or discounts,

Fees integral to the effective interest rate include origination fees received or paid by the entity relating to
the creation or acquisition of & financial asset or issuance of a financial liability, for example fees for
evaluating creditworthiness, evaluating and recording guarantees or collateral, negotiating the terms of
the instrument and for processing transaction documents. Commitment fees received by the Group to
originate loans at market interest rates are integral to the effective interest rate if it is probable that the
Group will enter into a specific lending arrangement and doas not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly
after origination. The Group does not designate loan commitments as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

When loans and other debt instruments become doubtful of collection, they are written down to the present
value of expecled cash infiows and interest income is thereafter recorded for the unwinding of the presant
value discount based on the asset's effective interest rate which was used to measure the impairment loss.
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All other fees, commissions and other income and expense items are generally recorded on an accrual
basis by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the aciual service
pravided as a proportion of the total services to be provided. Loan syndication fees are recognised as
income when the syndication has been completed and the Group retains no part of the loan package for
itseli, or retains a part at the same effective interest rate as for the other participants,

Commissions and fees arising from negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a
third party, such as the acquisition of loans, shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of
businesses, and which are eamed on execution of the underlying transaction, are recorded on its
completion. Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees are recognised based on the
applicable service contracts, usually on a time-proportion basis.

Foreign currency transiation. The functional currency of each of the Group's consolidated entities is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The functional currency of the
Bank and its subsidiaries, and the Group's presentation currency, is the national cumency of Uzbekistan,
Uzbekistan Soum {*UZS"),

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into each entity's functional currency at the official axchange
rate of the CBU at the end of the respective reporting period. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settiement of transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
into each entity's functional currency at year-end official exchange rates of the CBU are recognised in
profit or loss for the year (as foreign exchange translation gains less losses). Translation at year-end
rates does not apply to non-monetary items that are measurad at historical cost.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign cumency, including equity investments, are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Effects of exchange rate changes on non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
recorded as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Loans batween group entities and related foreign exchange gains or losses are eliminated upon
consolidation. However, where the loan is between group entities that have different functional
currencies, the foreign exchange gain or loss cannot be eliminated in full and is recognized in the
consolidated profit or loss, unless the loan is not expected to be settled in the foreseeable future and thus
forms part of the net investment in foreign operation. In such a case, the foreign exchange gain or loss is
recognized in other comprehensive income. The results and financial position of each group entity are
transiated into the presentation currency as follows:

(I} assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presanted are transiated at the closing rate at
the end of the respective reporing period;

{if} income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevalling on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are franslated al the dates of the transactions);

(i) components of equity are transiated at the historic rate: and

(iv) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Al 31 December 2014, the principal rate of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances was
USD 1 = UZS 2,422.40 (2013: USD 1 = UZS 2,202.20). The principal average rate of exchange used for
transiating income and expenses was USD 1 = UZS 2,095.47, (2013: USD 1 = UZS 2,311.49),

Offsefting. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reporied in the consolidated
statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there Is an intention to either sattle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. Such a right of set off (a) must not be contingent on a future event and (b) must
be legally enforceable in all of the following circumstances: (i) in the normal course of business, (i) the
event of default and (iii) the event of insolvency or bankruptey.
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Earnings per share. Earnings per share are determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
owners of the Bank by the weighted average number of participating shares outstanding during the
reporting year.

Staff costs and related contributions. VWages, salaries, contributions to the state pension and social
insurance funds, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Group. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligation to make pension or similar benefit payments beyond the payments to the
statulory defined contribution scheme.

Segment reporting. Segments are reported in 8 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the Group’s chief operating decision maker. Segments whose revenue, result or assets are ten percent or
mare of all the segments are reported separataly.

Changes in presentation. \Where necessary, coresponding figures have been adjusted to conform to
the presentation of the current year amounts.

The effect of reclassifications for presentation purposes was as follows on amounts at 31 December
2013;
As originally Effect of As restated
presented reclassification
and correction
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums of errar

Statement of FEnancial Position lines affected

ASSETS

Cash and cash eguivalents - 124,400,382 124,400,382

Cash and balances with the CBU 131,629,760 (131.,628,760) -

Due from other banks 63,400,881 7,229,378 70,630,269

TOTAL ASSETS 491,976,040 = 491,976,040

LIABILITIES

Reseres on insurance contracts 18,926,283 {3,498 650) 15,426,633

TOTAL LIABILITIES 440125464 (3499,650) 436,625,814

EQUITY

Other insurance resenes - 3,459 650 3,490 650

TOTAL EQUITY 51,850,576 3,499,650 55,350,226

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 491,976,040 - 451,976,040
As originally Effectof As restated

presentad correction of

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums Brror

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income lines affected

|nsurance operations income 8,113,888 830,867 8,944 763

Insurance aperalions expense {4,464 407) (535,084)  (4,999.481)

Profit before tax 12,650,776 285,783 12,946,559

PROAT FOR THE YEAR 11,376,715 295783 11,672,488

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share

(expressed in UZS per share) 316 8 324
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The effect of reclassifications for presentation purposes was as follows on amounts at 1 January 2013:

As originally Effect of As restated
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums presented reclassification
Statement of Anancial Position lines affected
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - 83,602,103 B3602,103
Cash and balances with the CBU 76,281,874 {T6281,8B74) -
Due fram ather banks 38170166 (7.320,229) 31,849,937
TOTAL ASSETS 246,051,008 - 246,051,008

The corresponding figures for “Cash and balance with the CBU" and "Due from other banks™ have been
adjusted to conform to the presentation of the current year amounts. The corresponding figures for
“Reserves on insurance contracts”, “Insurance operations income” and *Insurance operations expenses”
have been adjusted to reflect correction of an emor, which is described below.

The nature of prior period error. IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts prohibits provisions for possible claims
under insurance contracts that are not In existence at the end of a reporting period. In its prior year IFRS
financial statements, the Group erroneously recognised these reserves as liabilities, although there was
no present obligation for losses under the insurance contracts at the end of the prior reporting period.
These reserves should have rather been recognised as part of equity. Changes in such reserves on
insurance contracls are appropriations of retained eamings rather than expenses; therefore,
corresponding figures for insurance operations income and expenses have been adjusted accordingly,
Correction of the error does not affect figures at the beginning of the earliest prior period presented, since
the insurance subsidiary was acgquired during the prior reporiing period.

Presentation of statement of financial position in order of liquidity. The Group does not have a
clearly identifiable operating cycle and therefore does not present curmant and non-current assets and
liabilities separately in the statement of financial position. Instead, assets and liabilities are presented in
order of their liquidity.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The following table provides information on amounts expected to be recoverad or settled before and after
twelve months after the reporting period:

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Amounts expected to be Amounts expected to be
recovered or settled recovered or settled
Within 12  Beyond 12 Total Within12  Beyond 12 Total
months after months after months after months after
In thousands of the reporting the reporting the reporting the reporting
Uzbekistan Soums period period period period
ASSETS
Cash and cash
equivalents 9B, 453,814 - 88,453,914 124,400,382 - 124,400,382
Due from other banks 98453 448 - 898,453 448 70,630,269 - 70,630,289
Loans and advances
to cusiomears 31289103 221,660,310 252048413 82,308,650 120,223,108 202,531,758
Investment securities
available for sale 625,374 4 572,034 5,197,408 - 3,367 408 3,367,408
Currant income ax
prepayment 800,973 - 409973 - - -
Defarred income
faxassel - 854,911 BE4 911 B 348,735 348 735
Premises, equipment
and intangible assets 3,727,320 63,855,447 67,582,767 5,571,760 64 807 672 70,379,432
Rainsurers® share
of reserves for
insurance confracts 2,526,047 B 2,526,047 6,385,682 - 6,385,682
Other assets 10825517 = 10,825.517 13,831,374 13,831,374
Total assets 246,810,696 290,952,702 537,763,398 303,228,117 1BB,7479231 491,976,040
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Amounts expected to be Amounts expected to ba
recoverad or settled recovered or settled
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
manths after months after months after months after
In thousands of the reporting the reperting the reporting the reporting
Uzbekistan Soums period period period period
LIABILITIES
Due to other banks 105,354 929 11,676,451 117,031,380 72,884 515 - 72894515
Customer accounts 301,773,060 5,233,383 307006443 277806409 40156,600 327,053,000
Debtsecurities in
issUE 20782516 4250000 25032516 B,0B0414 4,800,000 13880414
Advances from
lessees 404 994 . 484 004 227,792 - 227,792
Insurance liabilities 7,893,669 6,727,158 14,620,827 4099491 10437142 15426,833
Cther labilities 4,351,175 - 4,351,175 7143451 - 7,143,451
Total liabilities 440,650,343 27 BB6,992 468,537,335 372242072 64,383,742 436,625814

Amendments of the consolidated financial statements after /ssue. The Bank's shareholders and
management have the power to amend the consolidated financial statements after issue.
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised in the consoclidated
financial statements, and the carrying amounts of asseis and liabilities within the next financial year,
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on management's experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are balieved to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Management also makes ceriain judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in
the process of applying the accounting policies. Judgements that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

Going concern. Management prepared these consolidated financial statements on a going concem
basis. In making this judgement management considered the Group's financial position, current
intentions, profitability of operations and access to financial resources, and analysed the impact of the
recant financial crisis on future operations of the Group.

Impairment losses on loans and advances. The Group regularly reviews its loan portfolios to assess
impairment. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss for the year,
the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there s a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a porifolio of loans bafore the decrease can
be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating
that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaulls on asseis in the group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regulariy
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

A 10% increase or decrease in actual loss experience compared to the loss estimates used would result
in an increase or decrease in loan impairmeant losses of UZS 194,956 thousand (2013; UZS 73,485
thousand), respectively. Impairment losses for individually significant loans are based on estimates of
discounted future cash flows of the individual loans, taking into account repayments and realisation of any
assels held as collateral against the loans. A 10% increase or decrease in the actual loss experienca
compared to the estimated future discounted cash flows from individually significant loans, which could
arise from differences in amounts and timing of the cash flows, would result in an increase or decrease in
loan impairment losses of UZS 56,600 thousand (2013: UZS 153,085 thousand), respectively,

Deferred Iincome tax asset recognition. The recognised deferred tax asset represents income taxes
recoverable through future deductions from taxable profits, and is recorded in the statement of financial
position. Deferred income tax assets are recorded to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is
probable. The future taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits that are probable in the future are
based on a medium term business plan prepared by management and extrapolated results thereafter,
The business plan is based on management expeciations that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

5 Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations
The following new standards and interpretations became effective for the Group from 1 January 2014;

"Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” - Amendments to IAS 32 (issued in
December 2011 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The
amendment added application guidance to IAS 32 to address inconsistencies identified in applying some
of the offsetting criteria. This includes clarifying the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right
of set-off and that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement. The
standard clarified that a qualifying right of set off {a) must not be contingent on a future event and (b)
must be legally enforceable in all of the following circumstances: (i) in the normal course of business, (i)
the event of default and (iii) the event of insolvency or bankruptcy. The amended standard did not have a
material impact on the Group.
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5 Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations (Continued)

“Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 - Investment entities" (issued on 31 October 2012
and effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2014). The amendment introduced a definition
of an investment entity as an entity that (i) obtains funds from investors for the purpose of providing them
with investment managament services, (i) commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest
funds solely for capital appreciation or investment income and (i) measures and evaluates its
investments on a fair value basis. An investment entity is required to account for its subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss, and to consolidate only those subsidiaries that provide services that are
related to the entity's investment activities. IFRS 12 was amended lo introduce new disclosures, including
any significant judgements made in determining whether an entity is an investment entity and information
about financial or other support to an unconsolidated subsidiary, whether intended or already provided to
the subsidiary. The amended standard did not have a material impact on the Group.

IFRIC 21 — "Levies" (issued on 20 May 2013 and effective for annual periods beginning 1 January
2014). The interpretation clarifies the accounting for an obligation to pay a levy that is not income tax. The
obligating event that gives rise to a liability is the event identified by the legislation that triggers the
obligation to pay the levy. The fact that an entity is economically compelled to continue operating in a
future period, or prepares its financial statements under the going concern assumption, does not create
an obligation. The same recognition principles apply in interim and annual financial statements. The
application of the interpretation to liabilities arising from emissions trading schemes is optional. The
interpretation did not have a material impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 36 — “Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets” (issued in
May 2013 and effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2014; earlier application is
permitted if IFRS 13 is applied for the same accounting and comparative period). The amendments
remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount when a CGU coniains goodwill or indefinite
lived intangible assets bul there has been no impairment. The amended standard did not have a material
impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 39 — "Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting” (issued
in June 2013 and effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2014).The amendments allow
hedge accounting to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been designated as a hedaging
instrument, is novated (i.e parties have agreed to replace their original counterparty with a new one) to
effect clearing with a central counterparty as a result of laws or regulation, if specific conditions are met.
The amended standard did not have a material impact on the Group.

6 New Accounting Pronouncements

Certain new standards and interpretations have been issued that are mandatory for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015 or later, and which the Group has not early adopted.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement” (amended in July 2014 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018). Key features of the new standard
are:

* Financial assets are required to be classified into three measurement categories: those to be
measured subsequently at amortised cost, those to be measured subsequently at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL).

» Classification for debt instruments is driven by the entity's business model for managing the
financial assets and whether the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI). If a debt instrument is held to collect, it may be carried at amortised cost if it
also meets the SPP| requirement. Debt instruments that mest the SPPI requirement that are held
in a portfolio where an entity both holds to collect assels’ cash flows and sells assats may be
classified as FVOCI. Financlal assets that do not contain cash flows that are SPPI must be
measured at FVPL {for example, derivatives), Embedded derivatives are no longer separated
from financial assets but will be included in assessing the SPPI condition.
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6 MNew Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

Investmants in equity instruments are always measured at fair value. However, management can
make an irrevocable election to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income,
provided the instrument is not held for trading. If the equity instrument is held for trading, changes
in fair value are presented in profit or loss,

Mast of the requirements in IAS 38 for classification and measurement of financial liabilities were
carried forward unchanged to IFRS 9. The key change is that an entity will be required to present
the effects of changes In own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss in other comprehensive income.

IFRS 9 introduces a new model for the recognition of impairment losses — the expected credit
losses (ECL) model. There is a 'three stage' approach which is based on the change in credit
guality of financial assets since initial recognition. In practice, the new rules mean that entities will
have to record an immediate loss equal to the 12-month ECL on initial recognition of financial
assets that are nol credit impaired (or lifetime ECL for trade receivables). Where there has been
a significant increase in credit risk, impairment is measured using lifetime ECL rather than 12-
manth ECL. The model includes operational simplifications for lease and trade receivables.

Hedge accounting requirements were amended to align accounting more closely with risk
management. The standard provides entities with an accounting policy choice between applying
the hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 and continuing to apply |AS 39 to all hedges
because the standard currently does not address accounting for macro hedging.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the new standard an its financial statements.

The following other new pronouncements are not expected to have any material impact on the Groug
when adopted:

Amendments to IAS 19 - “Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions” (issued in November
2013 and effective for annual periods baginning 1 July 2014),

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 (issued in December 2013 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2014).

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2013 (issued in December 2013 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2014).

IFRS 14, Regulatory deferral accounts (issued in January 2014 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016).

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations - Amendments to IFRS 11 (issued on
6 May 2014 and effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation - Amendments to 1AS 16
and IAS 38 (issued on 12 May 2014 and effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016).

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (issued on 28 May 2014 and effective for the
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

Agriculture: Bearer plants - Amendments to IAS 16 and |AS 41 (issued on 30 June 2014 and
effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2016).

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments to IAS 27 (issued on 12 August
2014 and effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2016).
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6 New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

= Sale or Confribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture -
Amendments to IFRS 10 and |AS 28 (issued on 11 September 2014 and effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016).

*» Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 (issued on 25 September 2014 and affective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016).

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 December 31 December
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Cash on hand 17,427 663 6,004,304
Cash balances with CBU (other than mandatory reserve depasit) 40,360,760 BB, 188 506
Correspondent accounts and ovarnight deposits with other banks 20,308,518 27,306,572
Placements with other banks with original maturities of less
than three maonths 20,358,973 2,900,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 98,453,914 124 400,382

Cash balances with the CBU include an ovemight deposit of UZS 33,900,000 thousand (2013: UZS
89,200,000 thousand) bearing a fixed interest rate of 0.02% per annum (2013: 0.02% per annum).

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents balances at 31 December 2014, is as follows;

Balances with CBU Correspondent Placements
ather than mandatory accounts with other
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums reserve deposit banks Total
Naither past due nor impaired
- Central Bank of Uzbekistan 40,360,760 - - 40,360,760
- Lower than A- rated - 20,306,518 20,358,973 40,665,491
Total cash and cash equivalents,
excluding cash on hand 40,360,760 20,306,518 20,358,973 81,026,251
The cradit quality of cash and cash eguivalents balances at 31 December 2013, is as follows:
Balances with CBU Correspondent Placements
other than mandatory accounts with other
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums reserve deposit banks Total
Neither past due nor impaired
- Cenfral Bank of Uzbekistan 88,188,506 * - BB,188.506
- Lower than A- rated - 27,306,572 2900000 302086572
Total cash and cash equivalants,
excluding cash on hand 88,189,506 27,306,572 2900000 118,396,078

Interest rate analysis of cash and cash equivalents is disclosed in Note 29. Information on related party

balances is disclosed in Nate 35,
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& Due from Other Banks

31 December 31 December

iIn thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Mandatory deposits with CBLU 41,184,163 37435950
Restricted cash 26,787 831 27,770,544
Flacements with other banks with original malurities of mare

than three months 30,481,354 5423475
Total due from other banks 98,453,448 70,630,269

The mandatory deposits with CBU include reserves against assets impairment and customer deposits,
and represent non-interest bearing deposits held in accordance with CBU instructions. The Group does
not have the right to use these deposits for the purposes of funding its own activities. For related
accounting policy refer to Note 3,

Amounts due from other banks are not collateralised. Analysis by credit quality of amounts due from other
banks outstanding at 31 December 2014, is as follows:

Mandatory Restricted Placements Total
deposits cash with other
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums with CBU banks
Neither past due nor impaired
- CBU 41,184,182 - - 41,184,183
- Lower than A- rated - 26,787,831 30,481,354 57,288,285
Total due from other banks 41,184,163 26,787,931 30,481,354 98,453 448

Analysis by credit quality of amounts due from other banks outstanding at 21 December 2013, is as
follows:

Mandatory Restricted Placements Total
deposits cash with other
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums with CBU banks
MNeither past due nor impaired
-CBU 37435950 - 37,435,950
- Lower than A- rated - 27,770,544 5423475 33,184,319
Total due from other banks 37,435,950 27,770,844 5423475 70,630,269

Refer to Note 33 for the estimated fair value of each class of amounts due from other banks. Interest rate
analysis of due from other banks is disclosed in Note 29. Information on related party balances is
disclosed in Note 35.

9 Loans and Advances to Customers

31 December 31 December

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013

Loans to legal entities 231,953,547 1B2.B16,773

Metinvestmentin finance lease 17,344 581 19,585,335

Loans to individuals 6,166,538 2,395,346

Total loans and advances to customers, gross 255464966 204,797 454

Less: Provision for loan impairment {2.515,553) (2,265,686)
Total loans and advances to customers 252,949,413 202,531,758

g Loans and Advances to Customers (Continued)

Movements in the provision for loan impairment during 2014 are as follows:
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Loans to Met Loans to Total
legal entities Investmentin individuals
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums finance lease
Provision for loan impairment at 1 January 1,529,322 735,282 1,092 2,265,696
Provision for / (Recovery of) loan impairment
during the vear 250,040 {(102,823) 102,640 249,857
Provision for loan impairment at 31 December 1,779,362 632,459 103,732 2,515,553
Movements in the provision for loan impairment during 2013 are as follows:
Loans to Net Leoans to Total
legal entities  imvestment in  individuals
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums finance lease
Provision for loan impairment at 1 January B03,693 586,107 1142 1400942
Provision for / (Recovery of) loan impairmant
during the year 725,628 138175 (50) 864,754
Provision for loan impairment at 31 December 1,529,322 735,282 1,082 2,265,696

Economic sector risk concentrations within the customer loan portfolio are as follows:

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums Amount Yo Amount Ve
Manufacturing 158,577,605 63 130,928,358 63
Financial sendces 34,020,373 13 16,194,750 8
Trade 23,807 389 a 23,684,111 12
Consfruction 14,750,668 G 11,688 875 B
Agriculiure 9231530 4 13,874 B&Y 7
Individuals 6,166,538 2 2,395,346 1
Senvices 5,252,016 2 4 028 8657 2
Transport and communication 3,658,847 1 2,001,430 1
Total loans and advances to customers

({before impairmant) 255,464,966 100 204,797,454 100

At 31 December 2014 the Group had 10 borrowers (2013: 5 borrowers) with aggregated loan amounts
above UZ5 6,000,000 thousand. The tolal aggregate amount of these loans was UZS 105,311,960
thousand (2013: UZS5 60,629,174 thousand) or 46% of the gross loan portfolio (2013: 42%),
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9 Loans and Advances to Customers (Continued)

Information about collaieral at 31 Decamber 2014 is as follows:

Loans to MNat Loans to Total
legal entities  investment in  individuals

In thousands of Uzbakistan Soums finance lease

Loans guaranteed by other parties 36,738,591 - TB7 2T 37,525,862
Loans collateralised by

- equipment 104,995,581 9370678 1420827 115,787.086
-real estats 8,544,539 5075646 24B0,715 76,100,800
- wvahicles 14,055,767 2722984 98,626 17477 377
- Insurance 4,595 432 - 143,479 4738911
- inventory 2,130,672 - 244 603 2375275
- cash deposits BY2 865 175,573 391017 1,459 555
Total loans and advances to customars

(before impairment) 231,953 547 17,344,881 6,166,538 255464 966
Information about collateral at 31 December 2013 is as follows:

Loans to Met Loans to Total
legal entities investmentin individuals

fn thousands of Uzbekistan Soums finance lease

Loans guarant=ed by other parties 4 557,704 - 552,699 5,110,493
Loans collateralised by

- equipmeant B0.475,006 14218172 8,632 94,701,800
-cash deposits 51,854,283 - 24,792 51,678,075
- real estate 40,152,776 1637336 13814068 43171518
-vghicles 4 922 596 3,729,827 291067 8,843 430
- Insurance 854,228 - 136,750 990,878
Total loans and advances to customers

(before impairment) 182,B16,773 19,585,335 2,395346 204,797,454

The disclosure above represents the lower of the carrying value of the loan or collatera! taken: the

remaining parl is disclosed within the unsecured exposuras.
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9 Loans and Advances to Customers (Continued)

Analysis by credit quality of loans outstanding at 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Loans to Meat Loans to Total
lzgal entities  investmentin  individuals

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums finance lease

Loans assessed for impairment on a porffolio basis

- Large bormowers with credit history over two years 103,881,004 6666528 - 110547532
- Large new borrowers 7,273,825 - - 7273925
- Loans to small and medium size entiies 103,790,534 B,448.406 - 112,238,940
- Loans to micro firms and individuals 15,747,183 1335212 6,166,538 23,248,033
Total loans assessed for impairment on a

portfolio basis 230,692 646 16,450,146 6,166,538 253,309,330
Loang individuslly determined to be impairsd (gross)

- less than 30 days overdua 781378 - - TB1.378
- 31 1o 90 days overdue 478,523 - - 479,523
- 81 10 180 day= overdue - 282 444 - 282 444
- 181 to 360 days overdus - 60229 - 602,291
Total individually impaired loans (gross) 1,260,901 894,735 - 2,155,636
Total loans and advances to customers (gross) 231,953,547 17,344,881 6,166,538 255464.,966
Impairment provisions assessed on a portfolio basis  (1,646,365) (198,458)  (103,732)  (1.949,555)
Impairment provisions for individually impaired loans (132,997 (433,001) - (565,998)
Less impairment provisions (1,779,362) (632,459) (103,732) (2,515,553)
Total loans and advances to customers 230,174,185 16,712,422 6,062,806 252949413
Analysis by credit quality of loans outstanding at 31 Decembar 2013 is as follows:

Loans to Met Leans to Total
legal entities  investment in  individuals

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums finance lease

Loans assessed for impairmenton a porffolio basis

- Large borrowers with cradit histary over two years 63,734,222 B,382.084 = 72,116,306
- Large new borrowers 2,854,691 - B 2,854 691
- Loans to small and medium size entilies 99,923 514 8,853,285 - 108,777,089
- Loans to micro firms and individuals 4,810,571 - 2,383,181 7.203,732
Total loans assessed for impairmenton a

portfolio basis 171,323,208 17,235,369 2,393,161 190,951,528
Loans individually determined to be impaired (gross)

- less than 30 days overdue 11,483 475 24747 2,185 11,843,131
- 31 o 90 days overdua - 140,951 - 140,951
=81 to 180 days overdue - 1,586,870 - 1,586,870
- 181 o 360 days overdue - 274674 - 274674
Total individually impaired loans (gross) 11,493,475 2,349 966 2,185 13,845,626
Total loans and advances to customers {gross) 182,B16,773 19,585,335 2385346 204797454
Impairment provisions assessed on a portiolio basis (333.572) (401.274) - (T34,848)
Impairment provisions for individually impalired loans (1,1895,750) {334,008) (1,082} (1,530,850)
Less impairment provisions (1.529,322) (735,282) (1,092) (2,265,696)
Total loans and advances to customers 181,287 451 18,850,053 2,394,254 202,531,758
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8 Loans and Advances to Customers (Continued)

The Group applied the portfolio provisioning methodology prescribed by IAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, and created portfolio provisions for impairment losses that were incurred,
but have not bean specifically identified with any individual loan, by the end of the reporting period. The
impairment provisions may exceed the total gross amount of individually impaired loans as a result of this
palicy and the portfolio impairment methodology.

The primary factors that the Group considers in determining whether a loan is impaired are its overdue
status and realisability of related collateral, if any. As a result, the Group presents above an ageing
analysis of loans that are individually determined to be impaired.

Refer to Note 33 for the estimated fair value of each class of loans and advances 1o customers, Interest
rate analysis of loans and advances to customers is disclosed in Note 28. Information on related party
balances is disclosed in Nate 35,

Finance lease payments receivable (gross investment in the leases) and their present values are as
follows:

Due within1  Due between 1 Total

In thousands of Uzbekistan Scums year and 5 years
Fnance lease payments receivable

at 31 December 2014 10,458,929 11,374,063 21,872982
Uneamed finance incaoms (2,382 546) (2,145565) (4,528,111)
Impairmeant less provision (213.B14) (418,645) (632,458)
Present value of lease payments receivable

at 31 Deacember 2014 7,902,569 8,809,853 16712422
Fnance lease payments receivable

at 31 December 2013 10,300,494 21650442  31,959936
Unearned finance income {3,754 560) (7.884,758) (11,639,219)
Impairment loss provision (237,184) (488,088) (735.282)
Present value of lease payments receivable

at 31 December 2013 6,317,750 13,267,585 18,585,335

10 Investment Securities Available for Sale

31 December 31 December

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Equity securities 4572034 3,317,408
Debt securities 625,374 50,000
Total investment securities available for sale 5,197,408 3,367 408
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10 Investment Securities Available for Sale {Continued)

At 31 December, the principal equity securities available for sale ware;

Share Nature of Country of Carrying amount

In thousands of Uz bekistan Soums %  business registration 2014 2013
JVLLC "UzTex Shovot” 10.00 Texile Lzhekistan 3055429 2655426
JVLLE "Uchkurgan Texil™ 6.04 Texile Uzhekistan 875771 -
JSCB "Ipoteka Bank” 0.22 Banking Uzhekistan 383 460 299 766
J5C "Kapital Sugurta® 253 Insurance Uzbekistan 200,000 200,000
JSCB "UzPromStroyBank” (.01 Banking Uzbekistan M7174 59216
PJSCH "Hamkor Bank” 0.01 Banking Uzbekistan 55,200 8,000
Credit Bureau "Credit Inform ative

Analytical Centre” 3.00 Banking Uzbekistan 40,000 40,000
Fund for financing investment projecls

preparation under Uzbakiztan Bank

Association 1.82 Banking Uzbekistan 20,000 .
Association of profassional participants

of the insurance 470 Insurance Uzbekistan 15,000 15,000
Total equity securfties available for sale 4,572,034 3,317,408
The movements in equity securities availabie for sale are as follows:

In thousands of Uzbakistan Soums 2014 2013
Total equity securities available for sale at 1 January 3,317,408 3,040,000
Furchases of equity securifies available for sale 1,254 626 621,982
Disposals of equily securities awailable for sale - (344.574)
Total equity securities available for sale at 31 December 4,572,034 3,317.408
At 31 December, the principal debt securities available for sale were;
Type of Mominal Maturity Carrying amount

in thousands of Uzbekistan Soums security interast rate 2014 2013
JECB "UzFromStroyBank” Bonds 11% 31-Dec-14 - 50,000
JSCEB "Kapital Bank™ Bonds 10% 23-0ct-18 625,374 -
Total debt securities available for sale 625,374 50,000
The movements in debt securities available for sale are as follows:

In thousznds of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Total debt securities available for sale at 1 January 50,000 -
Purchases 625,374 50,000
Disposals of debt securities available for sale (50.000) -
Total debt securities avallable for sale at 31 December 625,374 50,000
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11 Premises, Equipment and Intangible Assets

Premizes Office and Construction Total  Intangible Total
In thousands of com puter in progress property and assets
Uzbekistan Soums equipment eguipment
Costat1 January 2013 19,987,823 5,742,008 4,076,867 29,806,696 460,648 30,267 344
Accumulated
depreciation
and amortization (1.084,550) (1.297 487) = (2482037) (152,440) (2634477)
Carrying amount at
1 January 2013 18,903,273 4,344 518 4076867 27,324,659 08,208 27,632,867
Additions 25404340 17,926,397 3690046 47020.7B3 83374 47113157
Acquisition through
business combinations 1.800,504 106,074 B 2,006,578 - 2006578
Disposals, net {3,601,142) (138,344) - (3,730.486) (6,086) (3,745.572)
Transfers (334179) (4,898174) 5232353 - - -
Depreciation and
amorisalion charge
(Mote 24) (1, 325623) (1,207.314) = (2.532,037) (94.661) (2,627.588)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2013 40947173 16,133,158 13,008,266 70,088,597 290,835 70,379432
Costat 31 December 43 306,956 18,101,241 13,008,266 75416463 534,729 75,851,162
Accumulated
depreciation
and amortisation (2,359,783) (2,968,083) - (5,327 8B66) (243,884} (5,571,760)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2013 40,847,173 16,133,158 13,008,266 70,088,597 290,835 70,378,432
Additions 18,023,329 5,503,024 2283126 25789479 39,194 25,828 673
Disposals, net (9,663,004) (663,128) (15,247) (10,341 4649) = (10,341,488)
Transfers 836,125 (974,704) 38,578 = - -
Met effiect of disposal of
subsidiary LLC
"Tashkent Trans Avo" (4,5668,402) (5,167,022) {4,823,125) (14,556 548) - [14,556,549)
Depreciation and
amortisstion charge
(Mote 24) (1.631967) (1,992,378) - (3,624,343) (102977) (3,727,320
Carrying amount at
31 December 2014 44045164 12,838,352 10,474,599 67,355,715 227,052 67582767
Costat 31 Decamber 47,712,326 18,054,313 10,471,599 76,238,238 577,045 76815283
Accumulated
depreciation
and amortisation (3,667,162) (5.215,361) - (8,682,523} (349,903) (9,232.516)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2014 44,045,164 12,838,952 10,471,588 67,355,715 227,052 67,582,767

Construction in progress consists mainly of construction and refurbishment of branch premises. Upon
completion, assets are transferred (o premises and equipment.
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12 Reinsurers' Share of Reserves for Insurance Contracts

31 December 31 December

in thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Unearned insurance premium resere 1,744,885 4,344,032
Incurred but not reported claims resenve 731,162 2,041,650
Reported but not setied claims resene 50.000 -
Total reinsurers share of reserves for insurance contracts 2,526,047 6,385,682
13 Other Assets

31 December 31 December
In thousands of Uzbekisfan Soums 2014 2013
Other financial assets:
Commission and other receivables from customers 1,730,246 280 446
Receivable from payment system "Famnet” 1,285,264 1,020,582
Receivable from money fransfer organizations 756,753 1,326,662
Receivable from insurance policy holders 710,987 THO.268
Unrealized forex gain 652,920 189,105
Receivable from insurance agents 422 341 252185
Claims receivable from leases 187,370 851 853
Receivable from plastic cards systems 137,650 -
Prepayment for equity securities - 675,771
Less: Provision for impairmeant {261,555) (13,329)
Total other financial assets 5,621,985 5,491,563
Other non-financial assets:
Prepayment for building and structure 1,500,000
Assels held for further leasing out 1,389,340 -
Prepaid expenses and advances BEE,132 945,018
Office supplies and other inventories 496,738 .
Prapaid axes other than income tax 358,980 175234
Prepayment for senices 337,405 802,634
Prepayment for suppliers 286,020 B5T 407
Prepayment for rans port vehicles 118,250 5,522 305
Other 47 6BT ar212
Total other non-financial assets 5,203,532 8,439,811
Total other assets 10,825,517 13,931,374

Movements in the provision for impairment of other financial assets during 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

In thousands of Uzbekisfan Soums 2014 2013
Provision for impairment at 1 January 13,329 775170
Provision for impairment during the year 256,579 1,263,212
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible (8,353) (2.015,053)
Provision for impairment at 31 December 261,555 13,329
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14 Due to Other Banks

31 December 31 December

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Lizbilities under letters of credit 5B,851,609 51,783 487
Short-term placements of other banks 47 789,243 21,111,028
Long-term placements of ather banks 10,380,528 -
Total due to other banks 117,031,380 72,884 515

Refer to Note 33 for the disclosure of the fair value of each class of amounts due {o other banks, Interest
rate analysis of due o other banks is disclosed in Note 29. Information on related party balances is
disclosed in Note 35,

At 31 December 2014 the Group had liabilities under letters of credit on behalf of two customers (2013
one customer), the aggregate amount of these liabilites was UZS 40,773,391 thousand (2013: UZS
50,138,285 thousand) or 35% of the due to other banks (2013: 69%)

At 31 December 2014 the Group had deposit placements of one bank (2013: one bank), the aggregate
amount of these deposits was UZS 25 844 800 thousand (2013: UZS 6,606,600 thousand) or 22% of the
due to other banks (2013: 9%).

15 Customer Accounts

31 December 31 December

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
State and public organisations

- current's ettlement accounts 13,779,242 5487504
- term deposits 7,685,539 959,564
Other legal entities

- current’s eftiemeant accounts 145,085,371 194293974
- term deposits 58,432,277 53,511,702
Individuals

- current's etlement accounts 8,003,503 27028972
- term deposits 73.020.511 45,759,893
Total customer accounts 307,006,443 327,053,000

Economic sector concentrations within customer accounts are as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums Amount % Amount %
Individuals B2,024.014 27 72,789,865 22
Financial organisations 55,267,315 18 31,362,893 10
Manufacturing 40,883,228 12 89,539,154 26
Feal estate 34,809,437 11 17,195,148 5
Trade 231728672 B 45,518,184 14
State and public organisations 21464, 781 7 6.457 468 2
Consftruction 17449618 [ 29230476 ]
Senices 12,873,382 4 6,408,585 2
Transport and communication 12,017,798 4 19,638,050 6
Agriculture 6,211,774 2 8,778,464 3
Other 66,424 1 az.gi12 1

Total customer accounts 307,006,443 100 327,053,009 100

15 Customer Accounts (Continued)
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At 31 December 2014, the Group had 10 customers (2013: 9 customers) with balances above UZS
3,300,000 thousand. The aggregate balance of these customers was UZS 54,068,240 thousand (2013:

LIZS 64,726,047 thousand) or 18% (2013: 20%) of total customer accounts.

Refer to Mote 33 for the disclosure of the fair value of each class of customer accounts. Interest rate
analysis of customer accounts is disclosed in Note 29. Information on related party balances is disclosed

in Mote 35.

16 Debt Securities in Issue

Maturity Annual 31 December 31 Dacember

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums date coupon rate 2014 2013
Deposit certificates R PRbZHIE - 1940

P I 6 May 2016 13.5% 250325156 13,880,414

Total debt securities in issue 25,032,516 13,880,414

At 31 December 2014, the Group had cne customer (2013; one customer) with aggregate balance of
UZS 24,350,000 thousand (2013 UZS 7,400,000 thousand) or 89% (2013; 53%) of total debt securities in

issue.

Refer to Note 33 for the disclosure of the fair value of each class of debt securities in issue. Interest rate
analyses of debt securities in issue are disclosed in Mote 29. Information on related party balances is

disclosed in Note 35.

17 Reserves on Insurance Contracts

31 December 31 December
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Unearned insurance pramium reserve 10,062,011 11,047,711
Reserve for preventive measures componant in unearned insurance
premium resarve 402,338 317,081
Reported but not setiled claims resene 2,088,530 817,713
Incurred but not reported claims resenve 2,057,850 3,244,128
Total reserves for insurance contracts 14,620,827 15,426,633
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18 Other Liabilities

Cther liabilities comprise the following:

31 December 31 December

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Premium payable on reinsurance 949 897 4,563,373
Accounts payable for co-insurance 682,358 529,020
Payable for resl estate 521,565 695420
Payable on money ransfer operations 494 2B0 -
Pavyable o the Individuals Deposit insurance Fund 403,772 324,680
Trade payable 282132 237,249
Professional fees payable 238,808 185,560
Other 101,716 107,385
Total other financial liabilities 3,675,628 6,642,677
Taxas payable, other than income tax 385,069 197,188
Current income tax payable 131,511 116,164
Accrued employee costs 83,844 147,454
Other 75,023 39,067
Total other non-financial labllities 675,547 500,774
Total other liabilities 4351175 7,143,451
Refer to Note 33 for disclosure of the fair value of each class of other financial liabilities.
18 Share Capital and Other Components of Equity

Number of Ordinary Share Total

outstanding shares premium
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums shares
excepl for number of shares {in thousands)

At 1 January 2013 2321 23,270,678 230,746 23501424
MNew shares issusd 20,860 20,860,679 1,043,034 21,803,713
At 31 December 2013 44131 44 131,357 1273,78B0 45,405,137
MNew shares [ssued 15,869 15,868,643 - 15,868,643
At 31 December 2044 60,000 60,000,000 1,273,780 61,273,780

Share premium represents the excess of contributions received over the nominal value of shares issued.

Stabilisation reserve, reserve for preventive measures and equity component in insurance reserves
represent possible claims under insurance confracts that are not in existence at the end of the reporting
period and are calculated based on regulative instructions at each month end and at the end of the
reporting period. These reserves indicate legal restrictions on the ability of the Group to use its equity,
The changes in such reserves are appropriations of retained earnings rather than expenses. For related

accounting policy refer to Note 3.

33



Private Joint Stock Commercial Bank “lnvest Finance Bank" and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2014

20 Interest Income and Expense

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Interest income

Loan and advances to customers 30,376,008 21,730,496

Letters of credit 4 467,037 2852320

Due from other banks 1,818,132 2,547 036

Total interest income 36762177 27,130,752

Interest expense

Cusiomer accounts 15,148,050 10,985,939

Due to other banks 5412144 4.296RB17

Debtsecurities in issue 2,250,797 1,622,029
Total interest expense 22,810,991 16,914,785

Met interest income 13,951,186 10,215,967

Interest income includes UZS B46,547 thousand (2013; UZS 1,715,667 thousand) interest income,

recognised on impaired loans to customers.,

21 Fee and Commission Income and Expense

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Fee and commission income

- Seflement ransactions 8,495 642 7,088,455
- Maintenance fee 5,708,543 4 270,541
- International money transfars 1.767 660 2,226,566
- Letters of credit 1,584 503 1,484 417
- SWAP operations 1.312 487 1270616
- Conversion operations 1,148,544 1047122
-lssuance of bank statemeants 1,030,656 899 4086
- Guarantees B0g9 850 699 052
- Plastic cards sendces 643,685 115,368
- Intzrnet banking 466,807 312,088
- Payment system "Paynet” 457 575 732,552
- Cash transactions 326,380 643,107
- Registration fee 162 968 182,208
- Cthar 365,357 631,877
Total fee and commission incomea 24,291,666 21525373
Fee and commission expenses

- Cash fransactions 1475117 812,253
- Foreign currency operations 863,172 752,524
- Letters of credit 822,786 B51625
- Setlement ransactions 225132 333877
= Other 205,034 111,560
Total fee and commission expense 3,591,841 2,961,639
Net fee and commission income 20,695,825 18,563,734
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22 Insurance Operations Income and Expense

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Premium on insurance of:

- Aircraft insurance 5,420,540 14,728,339
- Compulsory insurance of civil liability of motor vehicles 4 BGBT 641 3,171,238
- Loan repayments 3,884,705 3,017,893
- Carinsurance 2,514,734 1,902 997
- Construction insurance 1,820,860 1,178,981
- Medical insurance 1,671,003 688,556
- Compulsory insurance of civil liability of em ployer 1,298,331 410,713
- Responsibility 522,698 318,543
- Proparty from damage and natural disasters 379,067 606,352
- Other 727341 418,004
Change in uneamed insurance pramium reseres:

-insurance operations 985,700 (2,327 810)
-reinsurance operations (2.58814T) 745502
-resena for preventive measures component (85,255) {61,056)
Agent's fee commission 256,374 158823
Effect of foreign exchange differences on reinsurance operations 62,582 102,101
Less: Premium ceded [7.464482) (15,118433)
Total insurance operations income 14,182,692 9,944, 763
Claims pald for:

- Proparty from damage and natural disasters 1411712 32912
- Carinsurance 8992910 TIT.235
- Compulsory insurance of civil liability of motor vehicles 399,515 254,076
- Medical insurance 254 B33 471,212
- Compulsory insurance of civil liability of em ployer 140,383 4064
- Qther 61,033 1.922
Change in insurance loss reserves:

- reported but not settled claims resene 1,280,817 433,686
- incurred but not reported claims resene {1.,186,178) 219,646
Change in reinsurance loss resenves;

- incurred but not reported claims reserve 1,310,488 62,182
=repored but not settled claims resene {50,000) -
Agent's fee for voluntary insurance 1,621,746 1,407,120
Insurance claims handling cost BBE 937 688,796
Agent's fee for obligatory insurance 769,483 648.630
Total insurance operations expanse 7,893,669 4,999 491
Met insurance income 6,289,023 4,845272
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23 Other Operating Income

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Fines and penaltiez 2112611 849,132
Income from sala or disposition of fixed assets 379,967 165,733
Income from the rental of fixed assets 93,628 57,400
Gain on redemption of loan - 3,538,009
Gain on sale of assets under finance lease - 1,325493
Gain on acquisition of subsidiary - 222,534
Other nen-interast income 319,341 67,442
Total other operating income 3,105,547 6,375,743

24 Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

In thousands of Uzbekisfan Soums 2014 2013
Staff costs 15,400,083 13,321,307
Taxes other than on income 4,831,166 3,161,548
Depreciation and amorlisation 3727320 2,627 598
Rentexpenses 2,537 480 2,356,553
Confribution to the Deposit Guarantes Fund 1,533,652 1,300,679
Security services 1,385.501 1,001,172
Communication 1,207.501 B4BB5T
Repairs and maintenance 836,278 498 147
Loss on initial recognition of asset at rates below markst 769,080 -
Professional sendices 592,641 395913
Expenses associated with disposal of subsidiary 650,361 -
Office supplies G47.818 751,606
Fuel expenses ar2;518 151,585
Representative expenses 295005 290,389
Utilities 217,710 138,352
Loss on sale of assets under finance lease 103,840 -
Cher 937 428 188,977
Total administrative and other operating expenses 36,155,374 27,033,960

Included in staff costs are statutory pension contributions of UZS 2,703,848 thousand (2013: UZS
2,064,238 thousand).

25 Income Taxes

(a) Components of income tax expense
Income tax expense recorded in profit or loss for the year comprises the following:

In thousands of Uzbakistan Soums 2014 2013
Current tax 2555523 1367 552
Deferred tax (515.176) {93,491
Income tax expense for the year 2,040,347 1,274,061

{b) Reconciliation between the tax expense and profit or loss multiplied by applicable tax rate

The income tax rate applicable to the majority of the Group's 2014 income includes corporate income tax
of 15% and infrastructure development tax of 8%, effectively income tax rate is 21.8% (2013: 21.8%). The
income tax rate applicable to the majority of income of subsidiaries ranges from 0% to 8% (2013: from 0%
to 8%). Reconcilistion between the expected and the aclual taxation charge is provided below.
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25 Income Taxes (Continued)

In thousands of Uzrbekistan Soums 2014 2013

Profit before tax 10,203,771 12,946,559

Thearetical tax charge at statutory rate of 21.8% (2013 21.8%) 2,224 422 2,822,350

Tax effect of items which are not deductible or essessable for taxation purposes:

-Income tax benefits (B15,742) (2,187285)
- Permanent differences (114,279) B25418

- Taxrate differences {10.5%-11.25%) (47,831) {B9,775)
- Other (154, 725) 167,833

Under provizion of current tax in prior years, based on 2014 taxinspection results 761,859 X
Effect of changes in other insurance reserves (13,357) (64,481)
Income tax expense for the year 2,040,347 1,274 061

In accordance with the Decree of the President of Uzbekistan, until 1 January 2015, all commercial banks
pay income tax on the differential rates, depending on the proportion of long-term investment financing in
the loan portfolio. Income generated by this financing is taxed as follows: proportion of 35-40% of long-
term investment financing taxed at 12%, proportion of 40-50% taxed at 11.25%, and proportion of more
than 50% is taxed at 10.5%. In accordance with current tax legislation, the Group receives certain tax
incentives (additional deductible expenses) calculated as the amount of interest expense incurred to
increase term and saving deposits of individuals (in excass of 0.75 ratio from CBU refinancing rate) in
arriving at the Group's taxable profit,

{c) Deferred taxes analysed by type of femporary difference
Differences between IFRS and statutory taxation regulations in Uzbekistan give rise to temporary

differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. The tax effect of the movements in these temporary differences is detailed below.

2014  (Charged)/ 2013  (Charged)/ 2012
credited to credited to

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums profit or loss profit or loss
Tax effect of deductible [ {taxable)
temporary differences
Loan impairment provision 570,526 204,661 365,865 265,878 948 887
Lease impairment provision 137 .B76 38,773 89,103 95,778 3,325
Other assets impairmeant provision 57,014 57.018 - (86,947) 86,947
Accrued expenses 59,889 259,618 {199,617 (251,587 51,980
Property, equipment and intangible asseks 35,491 (44,B93) B4,384 70,279 14,105
Wet deferred tax asset 864,911 515176 349,735 83,491 256,244
Recognised deferred tax asset 864,911 316,558 549 352 293,108 256,244
Recognised deferred tax liability - 199 617 (199,617} (198.617) -
Met deferred tax asset 864,911 515,176 349,735 93,491 256,244
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26 Dividends

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Dividends payable at 1 January - -
Dividends declared during the vear 8,133,248 12,088,875
Dividends paid during the vaar = (762,194)
Dividends capitalized during the year (8,133.249) (11.326,681)

Dividends payable at 31 Decembar i i

Dividends par share declared
during the year (in UZS per share) 169 3556

All dividends are declared and paid in Uzbekistan Soums.

27 Eammings per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to owners of the Parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary sharas in issue during the year, excluding treasury shares.

The Bank has no dilutive potential ordinary shares; therefore, the diluted eamings per share equal the basic
earnings per share. Eamings per share are calculated as follows:

In thausands of Urbekistan Soums except for numb er of shares 2014 2013
Profit for the year attributable o ordinary shareholders 7,350,692 11,034,588
Profit for the year attributable to the owners 7,350,692 11,034,588
Vieighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 48,081 34013
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share (in UZS per share) 153 324

28 Segment Analysis

Operating segments are components that engage in business aclivities that may eam revenues or incur
expenses, whose operaling results are reqularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (CODM),
and for which discrete financial information is available. The CODM is the person - or group of persons -
who allocates resources and assesses the performance for the entity. The functions of the CODM are
performed by the management board of the Group.

{a) Description of products and services from which each reporiable segment derives its revenue
The Group is organised on the basis of three main business segments:
- Banking — representing direct debit facilities, current accounts, deposits, overdraits, loan and other

credit facilities, foreign currency, derivative products, private banking services, private customer
current accounts, savings, deposits, credit and debit cards, consumer loans and mortgages.

. Leasing — representing finance lease products to the legal entities where finance leases are the
leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incident to ownership of an asset.

L] Insurance — representing insurance products covering all common insurance risk, expect for life
insurance: aircrafis, car, loan repayments, constructions, medical, property damage, compulsary
insurance of civil liability of molor vehicles and compulsory insurance of civil liability of employer.
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28 Segment Analysis (Continued)

(b) Factors that management used to identify the reportable segments

The Group's segments are strategic business units that focus on different customers, They are managed
separately because each business unit requires different marketing strategies and service level.
Management, applied the core principle of IFRS 8 "Operating Segments”, in determining which of the
financial information sets should form the basis of operating segments.

(c) Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The CODM reviews financial information prepared based on International Financial Reporting Standards.
The CODM evaluates performance of each segment based on profit before tax.
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28 Segment Analysis {Continued)

(e) Analysis of revenues by products and services

The Group's revenues are analysed by products and services in Notes 20 (interest income), Note 21 (fee
and commission income), Mote 22 (insurance operations income and expense) and in Note 23 (other
operating income),

{(f} Geographical information

The Group conducts its operations in Uzbekistan and operations of the Group with their foreign
counterparts are disclosed in Note 29. All revenue of the Group is generated within Uzbekistan, since
mast of financial assets outside Uzbekistan are noninterast bearing.

{g) Major customers

The Group does not have customers with the revenues exceeding 10% of the total revenue of the Group.

29 Financial Risk Management

The risk management function within the Group is carried out in respect of financial risks, operational
risks and legal risks. Financial risk comprises market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The primary objectives of the financial risk management
function are to establish risk limits, and then ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits. The
operational and legal risk management funclions are intended to ensure proper functioning of intarnal
policies and proceduras, in order to minimise operational and legal risks.

Credit risk. The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that one party fo a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Exposure to
credit risk arises as a result of the Group's lending and other transactions with counterparties giving rise
to financial assets.

Clients of the Group are segmented inlo five rating classes, The Group's rating scale, which is shown
below, reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each rating class. This means that, in
principle, exposures migrate between classes as the assessmeant of their probability of default changes.

Group's internal credit rating system:

Good 1 Timely repayment of “good” loans is not in doubt. The borrower is a financially
stable company, which has an adequate capital level, high level profitability
and sufficient cash flow to meet its all existing abligations, including present
debt. When assessing the reputation of the borower such factors as the
history of previous repayments, marketability of collateral (movable and
immovable property guarantee) are taken into consideration.

Standard 2 “Standard” loans are secured with a refiable source of secondary payment
(guarantee or collateral). As a whole, the financial position of a borrower is
stable, but some unfavourable circumstances or tendencies are present, which,
if not disposed of, raise some doubts about the borrower's ahility to repay on
time. *Good" loans with insufficient information in the credit file or missing
information on collateral could be also classified as “standard” loans.

Sub-standard 3 “Sub-standard” loans have obvious shoricomings, which make doubtful the
repayment of the loan under the terms, envisaged by the initial agresment, For
loans classified as “sub-standard”, the primary source of repayment is not
sufficlent and the Bank has to seek additional loan repayment sources, such as
the sale of collateral.

Doubtful B “Doubtful® are loans which, in addition to having the characteristics of
“substandard” loans, have additional shortcomings, which make it doubtful that
the loan will be repaid in full under the existing circumstances. The probability
of incurring loss in respect of such loans is high, however, due to the presence
of certain positive factors, their classification as 'hopeless' Is deferred until
further clarification is obtained.
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289 Financial Risk Management {Continued)

Hopeless 5 Loans classified as “hopeless” are considered uncollectible and have such a
littte value that their continuance as assets of the Bank is not worth. This
classification doss not mean that the loans have absolutely no likelhood of
recovery, but rather means that the Bank should cease recognising such loans
and make efforis to get rid of such debt through selling collateral or make every
effort to collect the outstanding loan.

Risk limits contral and mitigation policies:
The Group manages limits and confrols concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified - in
particular, to individual counterparties and groups, and to industries.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one borrower or groups of barrowers and to geographical and industry segments.
Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when
considered necessary, Limits on the level of credit risk by product, industry sector and by geographic
regions are approved quarerly by management,

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where
appropriate. Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below;

{a} Collateral. The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most
traditional of these are the acceptance of collateral, prior to loan issuance, which is common practice. The
Group implements Credit policy guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collaieral or credit
risk mitigation.

The principal collateral types for loans and advances are:

premises and building

eguipment and motor vehicles used in borrower's business
inventory

loan insurance, and

letter of surety

{b) Limits. The Group established a number of credit committees which are responsible for approving
credit limits for individual borrowers:

* The Supervisory Board credit committee reviews and approves limits above 20% of Bank's tier-
one capital and meets monthly. It is also responsible for issuing guidance to lower level credit
commitiess;

= The Management Board credit committee reviews and approves credit limits between 10% and
20% of tier-one capital and meets weekly;

¢ The Head office credit committee reviews and approves credit limits up te 10% of tisr-one capital
and meets weekly; and

¢ The Branches credit committee review and approve credit limits set by Head office and meet
daily.

Loan applications, along with financial analysis of loan applicant which includes liquidity, profitability,
interest coverage and debt service coverage ratios, originated by the relevant client relationship
managers are passed on to the Credit Committee for approval of cradit limit.

{c) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure, Concentrations arise when a
number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic
region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to
be similarly affected by changes in economic, paliical or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the
relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular industry or
geographical location.
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289 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risks, the Group's Credit policy and procedures include
specific CBU guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. |dentified concentrations of credit
risks are controlled and managed accordingly. The Group's management focuses on concentration risk
as follows:

+ The maximum risk to single borrower or group of affiliated borrowers shall not exceed 25% of the
Group's tier 1 capital.

= The maximum risk for unsecured credits shall not exceed 5% of Group's tier 1 capital,

« Total amount of all large credits canneot exceed bank's tier 1 capital by more than 8 times; and

= Total loan amount lo relaled party shall not exceed Group's tier 1 capital.

{d) Monitoring of foan portfolio guality and reporting. In accordance with the credit policy of the Group,
Loan portfolio monitoring unit is responsible for monitoring of:

« purposeful use of borrowed funds

& financial performance and position of borrowers
+ marketability collateral, and

= guality of loan portfolic.

Internal Audit is responsible for controlling adequacy of loan portfolio with requirements and regulations of
the Central Bank of Uzbekistan and internal policies of the Group. Credit risk management processes
throughout the Group are audited annually by the Internal Audit that examines the adequacy of the
procedures and proper loan classification. Internal Audit discusses the resulls of all assessments with
management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the Group Council,

Senior management assesses the appropriateness of the allowance for credit losses on a monthly basis,
The Group's management receives a comprehensive risk report once a guarter which is designed to
provide all the necessary information to assess and conclude on the credit risks of the Group.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets on
the statement of financial position. For guarantees and commitments to extend credit, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the amount of the commitment. Refer to Mote 31.

The Group's credit department reviews the ageing analysis of outstanding loans and follows up on past
due balances. Management, therefore, considers it appropriate to provide ageing and other information
about credit risk as disclosed in Notes.

Credit risk for off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as the possibility of sustaining a loss as
the result of another party to a financial instrument failing to perform in accordance with the terms of the
confract. The Group uses the same credit policies in assuming conditional obligations as it does for on-
balance sheet financial instruments, through established credit approvals, risk control limits and
monitoring procedures.,

Market risk. The Group takes on exposure to market risks. Market risks arise from open positions In
(a) currency, (b) interest rates and (c) equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific
market movements. Management sets limits on the value of risk that may be accepted, which is
monitored on a daily basis. However, the use of this approach does not prevent Iosses outside of these
limits in the event of more significant market movements,

Currency risk. In respect of currency risk, management sets limits on the |evel of expasure by currency
and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily. The table below

summarises the Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting
period:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
In thousands of Monatary Monetary Net Monetary Monetary Met
Uzbekistan financial financial position financial financial position
Soums assels liabilities assets liahbilities
US Dallar 110,501,249 (115412,8758) (4,911,626) 115780,339 (116,822412) (1.042.073)
Eurg 5,019,033 (344,684) 4,674,348 7438 (1425253} (1.417.817)
Other 22,945 (19,163) 3,782 730,983 (728,047) 2,936
Total 113,043 227 (115,776,722) (233,495) 116,518,758 (118,975712) (2,456954)
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As described in Note 31, the Group has entered into swap transactions on its net USD currency position
for the amount of UZS 13,913,359 thousand (2013: UZS 4,306,917 thousand), which eliminates negative
net balance sheet position on this currency.

Amounts disclosed in respect of derivatives represent the fair value, at the end of the reporting period, of
the respective currency that the Group agreed to buy (positive amount) or sell (negative amount) before
netting of positions and payments with the counterparty. The net total represents the fair value of the
currency derivatives. The above analysis includes only monetary assets and liabilities. Investments in
equities and non-manetary assets are not considered to give rise lo any material currency risk.

The following table presents sensitivities of profit or loss and equity to reasonably possible changes in
exchange rates applied at the end of the reporing period relative to the functional currency of the
respactive Group entities, with all other variables held constant;

31 December 31 Decembar

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
US Dollars strengthening by 10.0% (2013: 10.0%) (4971,163) (104,207}
US Dollars weakening by 10.0% (2013:10.0%) 491,163 104,207
Euro strengthening by 10% (2013: 10%) 46T 435 (141,782)
Euro weakening by 10% (2013; 10%) {467,435) 141,782

The exposure was calculated only for monetary balances denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective entity of the Group.

Interest rate risk. The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. Interest margins may increase as a result of
such changes, bul may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpecied movements arise,
Management monitars on a daily basis and sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing
that may be undertaken.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to interest rate risks. The table presents the
aggregated amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual interest repricing or maturity dates:

Demand and From 1to From 6to  Owver 1 year MNon- Total
In thousands of less than & months 12 months monetary
Uzbekistan Soums one month

At 31 December 2014
Total inancial assels 151,739,923 47138403 30944074 226281734 4572034 460,676,168

Total financial liabilites 207,602,719 137,952 823 86,030,591 21,158,834 - 452745967
Met interest

sensitivity gap at

31 December 2014 (55,862,796) (90,814,420} (55,086,517) 205,121,900 4,572,034 7,830,201

At 31 December 2013
Total financial assets 167,414,781 41567492 78,361,085 125758,734 3317408 406.421.380

Total financial liabilites 240,240,141 45,164,979 B1,108,895 53.956,600 - 420470615
Met interest

sansitivity gap at

31 December 2013 (82,825,360) (3,597.487) (2,746,930) 71,803,134 3317408 (14,049,235)

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates at that date had been 200 basis points lower (2013: 200 basis
points lower) with all other variables held constant, profit for the year would have been UZS 279,024
thousand (2013: UZS 204,319 thousand) higher, mainly as a result of lowsr interest expense on variable
interest liabilities.

ar
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29 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

If interest rates had been 200 basis points higher (2013: 200 basis points higher), with all other variables
held constant, profit would have been UZS 279,024 thousand (2013 UZS 204,310 thousand) lower,
mainly as a result of higher interest expense on variabie interest liabilities.

The Group monitors interest rates for its financial Instruments. The table below summarises interest rates
at the respeclive reporting date based on reports reviewed by key management personnel. For securities,
the interest rates represent yields to maturity based on market quotations at the reporting date:

2014 2013

In % p.a. uzs usD EUR UZS usp EUR
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 0.02-12 .27 4.97 0.02-12 527 4.87
Due from other banks 5-11 0.01-3 - 6.5-12.5 0.01-3 -
Loans and advances to customers 5-24 - . 8-27 - -
Investment securities avallable for sale 10 = - 11 - +
Liabilities

Due to other banks 10-12 0.1-8 - 10-12 0.5-8.5 -
Customer accounts 5-24 6-12 B 5-24 5-12 -
Debt securilies in issue 10-13.5 - - 11.7-135 - -

The sign " in the table above means that the Group does not have the respective assets or liabilities in
the correspending currency.

Other price risk. The Group has no material exposure to equity price risk,

The Group is exposed to prepayment risk through providing fixed or variable rate loans, including
morigages, which give the borrower the right ta repay the loans early. The Group’s current year profit and
equity at the end of the current reporting period would not have been significantly impacted by changes in
prepayment rates because such |oans are carried at amortised cost and the prepayment right is at, or
close to, the amortised cost of the loans and advances to customers (2013: no material impact).

Geographical risk concentrations. The geographical concentration of the Group's financial assets and
liabilities at 31 December 2014 is set out below:

In thousands of Uzbekisian Soums Uizbekistan OECD Non-0ECD Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents B9,588.819 6,402,045 2,453,050 98,453 914
Due from other banks 63,030,621 35,240,726 182,101 98,453 448
Loans and advances lo customers 252.849.413 - - 252949413
Investment securities available for sale 5,187 408 - - 5,197 408
Other financial assets 5,621,885 - - 5,621,985
Total financial assets 416,398 246 41,642,771 2,635,151 460,676,168
Fnancial lizbilities

Due to other banks 117,031,380 - - 117.031,380
Cusiomer accounts a07.006,443 - - 307,008,443
Debt securities In issue 25,032,516 - - 25,032,516
Other financial liakilifes 3,181,348 - 494 280 3675628
Total financial liabilities 452,251,687 - 494 280 452 745967
Met position in en-balance sheat

financial instruments (35,853 441) 41,642,771 2,140,871 7,930,201
Credit related commitments 136,017,028 - - 136,017.028
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29 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Assets, liabilities and credit related commitmenis have been based on the country in which the
counterparty is located.

The geographical concentration of the Group's financial assets and liabilities at 31 December 2013 is set
out below:

In thousands of Uzbskistan Soums Uzbekistan OECD Hon-0ECD Total
Anancial assets
Cash and cash equivalenls 124,400,382 - - 124,400,282
Due from other banks 34,087,891 34,058,284 2,484,084 70,630,269
Loans and advances to customers 202,531,758 - - 202531758
Imvestment securities avaiiable for sale 3,367.408 - - 3,367,408
Cther financial assets 5,401,563 - - 5,491,563
Total financial assets 369,879,002 34,058 284 2,484,094 406421380
Financial liabilities
Due to other banks 72854515 - - 72,894 515
Customer accounts 327,053,009 - - 327,033,009
Debtsecurities in issue 13,880,414 - - 13,880,414
Other financial liabillies 6,642 677 - - 6642677
Total financial liabilities 420,470,615 - - 420470615
Met position in on-balance sheet

financial instrurments {50,581,613) 34,058,284 2,484,094 (14,049,235)
Credit related commitments 84,313,045 - - 84,313,045

Other risk concentrations. Management monitors and discloses concentrations of credit risk by
obtaining reports listing exposures to borrowers, refer to Note 9.

Liguidity risk. Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in mesting obligations
associated with financial liabilittes. The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources
from overnight deposits, current accounts, maturing deposits, loan draw-downs, guarantees and from
margin and other calls on cash-settled derivative instruments. The Group does not maintain cash
resources to meet all of these needs as experience shows that a minimum level of reinvestment of
maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty. Liguidity risk is managed by the
Asset/Liability Committee of the Group.

The Group seeks to maintain a stable funding base primarily consisting of amounts due to other banks,
corporate and retail customer deposits and debt securities. The Group invests the funds in diversified
portfolios of liquid assets, in order to be able to respond quickly and smoothly to unforesesn liquidity
reguirements.

The liguidity management of the Group requires consideration of the level of liquid assets necessary o
settle obligations as they fall due; maintaining access to a range of funding sources; maintaining funding
contingency plans; and monitering liquidity ratios against requlatory requirements. The Bank calculates
liguidity ratios on a daily basis in accordance with the requirement of the Central Bank of Uzbekistan.
These ratio is;

- Current liquidity ratio (not to be less than 30%), which is calculated as the ratio of liquid assets to
liabilities maturing within 30 calendar days; the ratio was 73% at 31 December 2014 {2013; 65%).
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The Treasury Department recsives information about the liquidity profile of the financial assets and
liabilities. The Treasury Department then provides for an adequate portfolio of short-term liquid assets,
largely made up of shart-term liguid trading securities, deposits with banks and other inter-bank facilities,
to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Group as a whole.

The daily liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing, under a variety of scanarios
covering both normal and more severe market conditions, is performed by the Treasury Department.

The table below shows liabilities at 31 December 2014 by their remaining contractual maturity, The
amounts of liabilities disclosed in the maturity table are the contractual undiscounted cash fiows, gross
loan commitments and financial guarantees. Such undiscounted cash flows differ from the amount
included in the statement of financial position because the amount in the statement of financial position is
based on discounted cash flows. Financial derivatives are included at the contractual ameunts 1o be paid
or received, unless the Group expects to close the derivative position before its maturity date in which
case the derivatives are included based on the expected cash flows.

When the amount payable is not fixed, the amaunt disclosed is determined by reference to the conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period. Foreign currency payments are franslated using the spot
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

The undiscounted maturity analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Demand and From 1 to FromEto Owver 1 year Total

In thousands of less than & months 12 months
Uzbekisian Soums one month

Liabilities
Due to other banks 1,568,217  BO654.732 19,069459  12.960,861 123,253,269
Customer accounts 205,700,235 45,896,885 55519396 5,934 656 316,051,271
Debisecuriies in issue 335,841 5302500 16,324,000 4 780,000 26,722,341
Other financial liabilites 2287618 865911 522104 - 3675628
Guarantees issued 203,482  13,079207 796,970 14,074 883 28,154,342
Undrawn credit lines 15,428,089 - - - 15,428,088
Gross setisd swaps:
- inflows (3,463,274) (14,763,141) - - (18,226,415)
- outffows 3,294,973 14,275,487 - - 17,670,464
Metseitled swaps {168,301) (487 650) - - (655,951)

Total potential future payments
for financial obligations 225355178 157,311,685 92,231,926 37,730,200 512,628,989

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby letters of credit are considerably
less than the amount of the commitment disclosed in the above maturity analysis, because the Group
does not generally expect the third party to draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit as included in the above maturity table does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, since many of these commitments will expire or
terminate without being fundad,
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29 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The undiscounted maturity analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2013 is as follows:

Demand and From 1to From 6to  Owver 1 year Total

fn thousands of less than & manths 12 months
Uzbekistan Soums one month

Liabilities
Due to other banks 7424074 39,650,911 26,300,702 - 73,375,687
Cusiomer accounts 224 B2T 275 5,308,829 48,247,052 49,481,080 327 B64 306
Dabtsecurities in issue 1,540,516 503,300 7,096,537 4 831,685 13,872,038
Other financial liabiliies 6,642,677 - - - 6,642 677
Guarantees issued 166,065 10,674,129 650,419 11,486,552 22,977,164
Undrawn creditlines 5,174,002 - - - 5174002
Gross seltied swaps:
- inflows (1,628,073 (6,940,102 - - (8.568.175)
- oulflows 1,548,955 6,710,859 - - 8,258,815
Metsetled swaps (79,118) (229.243) - - (308,360)

Total potential future payments
for financial obligations 245,695 491 55,807,997 82,294,710 65,799,317 449 697,514
Customer accounts are classified in the above analysis based on contractual maturities. However, in

accordance with Uzbekistan Civil Code, individuals have a right to withdraw their depesits prior to
maaturity if they forfeit their right to accrued interest,

The Group does not use the above malurity analysis based on undiscounted contractual maturities of
liabilities to manage liquidity. Instead, the Group monitors expected maturities and the resulting expected
liquidity gap as follows:

Demand and From 1 to From 6to  Owver 1 year Total

In thousands of less than 6 manths 12 months

Uzbekistan Soums one month
At 31 December 2014
Financial assets 151,739,823 47,138,403 30944074 230,853,768 460,676,168
Financial liabilities 207,602,719 137,852,823 86,030,581 21,159,834 452 745 967
Met liquidity gap based on

expected maturitias (55,862,796) (90,814,420) (55,086,517) 209,693,934 7,830,201
At 31 December 2013
Financial assets 157,414,781 41,567 482 78,361,965 129077142 406,421,380
Financial liakilties 240,240,141 45,164,979 B1,108.,885 53,956,600 420470615

Met liguidity gap based on
expactad maturities (82,825,360) (3,597 487) (2,746,930) 75,120,542 (14,049,235)

The matching and/er controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is
fundamental to the management of the Group. It is unusual for banks ever to be completely matched
since business transacted is often of an uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses. The maturities of assets and
liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature, are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to changes in interest and
exchange rates.

Management believes that in spite of a substantial portion of customer accounts being on demand,
diversification of these deposits by number and type of depositors, and the past experience of the Group
would indicate that these customer accounts provide a long-term and stable source of funding for the
Group.
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30 Management of Capital

The Group's objectives when managing capital are (i) to comply with the capital requirements set by the
CBU and (if) to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The Group considers total
capital under management to be equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
amount of capital that the Group managed as of 31 December 2014 was UZS 66,002,006 thousand
(2013: UZS 51,850,576 thousand). Compliance with capital adequacy ratios set by the CBU is monitored
manthly, with reports outlining their calculation reviewed and signed by the Bank's Chairman and Chief
Accountant.

Under the current capital requirements set by the CBU, banks have to maintain ratios of:

=  Ratio of regulatory capital to risk weighted assets ("Regulatory capital ratio”) above 3 prescribed
minimum level of 10% (31 December 2014: 12.2%);

=  Ratio of Group's tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets ("Capital adequacy ratio”) above a prescribed
minimum level of 5% (31 December 2014: 15%); and

«  Ratio of Group's tier 1 capital to total assets less intangibles (“Leverage ratic”) above a prescribed
minimum level of 6% (31 December 2014: 12.1%);

The Group and the Bank have complied with capital ratios set above throughout 2014 and 2013.

Total capital is based on the Group’s reports prepared under Uzbekistan Accounting Legislation and
related instructions and comprises:

31 December 31 December

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Tier 1 capital

Share capital 60,000,000 44,131,357
Share premium 1,273,780 1.273,780
Retained earnings 2,296,603 1675812
Less: Intangible assels {227,052) (312,029)
Total Tier 1 capital 63,343,334 46,768,920
Tier 2 capital

Current year net profit 1,975,888 1,835,733
Total Tier 2 capital 65,319,320 48,604,653
Less! Investments in nen-consolidated entities (13.856,485) (10,482.509)
Total regulatory capital 51,462,835 38,122,144

31 Contingencies and Commitments

Legal proceedings. From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group
may be received. On the basis of its own estimates and both internal and external professional advice,
management is of the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in respect of claims, and accordingly
no provision has been made in these consclidated financial statements,

Tax contingencies. Uzbekistan tax legislation which was enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, is subject to varying interpretations when being applied to the transactions and
activities of the Group. Consequently, tax positions taken by management and the formal documentation
supporting the tax positions may be challenged tax authorities. Uzbekistan tax administration is gradually
strengthening, including the fact that there is a higher risk of review of tax transactions without a clear
business purpose or with tax incompliant counterparties. Fiscal pericds remain open to review by the
authorities in respect of taxes for five calendar years preceding the year when decision about review was
made. Under certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.
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31 Contingencies and Commitments (Continued)

As Uzbekistan tax legislation does not provide definitive guidance in certain areas, the Group adopts,
from time fo time, interpretations of such uncertain areas that reduce the overall tax rate of the Group,
While management currently estimates that the tax positions and interpretations that it has taken can
probably be sustained, there is a possible risk that outflow of resources will be required should such tax
positions and interpretations be challenged by the tax authorities. The impact of any such challange
cannct be reliably estimated, however, it may be significant to the financial position and/or the overall
operations of the Group.

Credit related commitments. The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are
available to 2 customer as required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit, which represent irrevocable
assurances that the Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to
third parties, carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letiers of credit, which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorising a third party to draw drafis on the
Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralised by the underlying
shipments of goods to which they relate or cash deposits and, therefore, carry less risk than a direct
borrowing.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in the form of
loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the
Group is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments, if the unused
amounts were to be drawn down. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused
commitments since most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining
specific credit standards. The Group monitors the term fo maturity of credit related commitments,
because longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term
commitments. Outstanding credit related commitments are as follows:

31 December 31 December

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Letiers af eredits, non post-financing 30,625,751 11,755,243
Financial guarantees issued 28,154,342 22 977,164
Undrawn credit lines 15,428,089 5,174,002
SWAP (commitment to buy USD and sell UZS) 16,069,887 6,437 546
SWAP (commitment to buy UZS and sell USD) 2,156,528 2130629
Total credit related commitments, gross 92,434,597 48,474,584
Less: Commitment collaterised by cash deposits (48,852,166) (12,636,123)
Total credit related commitments, net of cash covered exposures 136,017,028 84,313,045

The total outstanding contractual amount of undrawn credit lines, letters of credit, and guarantees does
not necessarily represent fulure cash requirements, as these financial instruments may expire or
terminate without being funded. The fair value of credit related commitments was UZS 12,651,876
thousand at 31 December 2014 (2013; UZS 8,303,883 thousand).

Credit related commitments are denominated in currencies as follows:

31 December 31 December

in thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
uso 57,998,078 37679078
LZs 27,585 427 9,568,707
EUR 6,841,081 1,224 899
Total credit related commitments 892,434,597 48,474,584
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32 Non-Controlling Interest

The following table provides information about subsidiary that has non-controlling interest that is material
to the Group;

Place of Proportion Proportion Profitor  Accumu- Dividends

business of non- of non- loss  lated non- paid to

tand controlling controlling attribu- controlling non-

country of intarest  interest's table to interestin controlling

incorpo- voting non- the interest

In thousands of ration if rights held controlling subsidiary during the

Uzbakistan Soums different) interest year
LLC “Asia Insuranca”™

Year ended 31 December 2014 Lizbekistan a7.8% 37.8% 812,732 3924824 142757

Year anded 31 December 2013 Lizbekistan 37.8% 37.B% 637010 3,112,002 715,284

The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries was as follows:

Total
In thousands CONMpre-
of Uzbekistan Current Mon-current Current Non-current hensiva
Soums assets assots liabilities liabilities Revenue Profit income
LLE "Asia
Insurance™
Yie 2014 18,442 612 12,267 488 2,256,658 14620827 14,182,682 2,150,086
¥ie 2013 19,236,983 12.761,818 5610271 15426633 9944 763 1,687,553 -

33 Fair Value Disclosures

Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are
measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, (i) level
two measurements are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and (iii) level three
measurements are valuations not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
Management applies judgement in categorising financial instruments using the fair value hierarchy. If a
fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment, that measurement is a
Level 3 measurement. The significance of a valuation input is assessed against the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

Recurring fair value measurements are those that the accounting standards require or permit in the
statement of financial position at the end of each reporting period.
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33 Fair Value Disclosures (Continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy into which the recurring fair value measurements are categorised at

31 December 2014, were as follows:

In thousands of Uzbekistan Soum s Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cashand cash equivalents

- Cash an hand 17.427 663 - - 17,427,663

- Cash balances with CBLI. (other than 40,360 760 } i 40,360,760
mandatory reserve deposit)

- Comes pandent accounts and overnight

deposits with other banks v AR i =0304,518
-F'Ia{:elimanrs with other banks with original i . 20358973 20,358,973
maturities of less than three months

Due fram ather banks

- Mandatory deposits with CBU - 41,184 163 - 41,184 163
- Resfricted cash - - 26,787,031 26,787,931

- Placements with other banks with original

maturities of more than three months . - HAREOR el
Loans and advances fo customers

- Loans to legal entities x - 230174185 230,174,185
-Net investment in finance lease - - 16,712,422 16,712,422

- Loans to individuals - - 6,062 B06 6,062 806
Investment securities available for sale

- Equity securities - - 4572034 4,572,034

= Debt securities - - 625,374 625,374
Other financial assets

- Receivable from Insurance policy holders - - 710,087 710,987
- Recelvable from insurance agents - - 423,341 422,341

- Other receivables from customers - - 4 488,657 4,488,657
TOTAL 57,788,423 61,490,681 341,397,064 460,676,168
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums Lavel 1 Level 3 Total
Due to other banks

- Liabilities under letters of cradit - 58,851,609 58,851,609
- Short-term placements of other banks - 47,780,243 47 7BB,243
- Long-term placements of other banks - 10,380,528 10,380,528
Customer accounts

- Currentisetlement accounts of siate and public organisations 13,779,242 - 13,779,242
- Term deposits of state and public organisations - 7,685,539 7,685,539
- Current’s etlement accounts of other legal entities 145 085,371 - 145,085,371
- Term deposits of other legal entities - 5BA432277 58,432,277
- Currentidemand accounts of individuals 8,003,503 - 0.003,503
- Term deposits of individuals - T3,020511 73.020,511
Debt securities in issue

- Deposit certificates - 25032516 25,032,516
Other financial liabilities

- Premium payable on reinsurance - 848,807 949,897
- Accounts payable for co-insurance 682,358 BB2 358
- Other payables to suppliers - 2043373 2,043,373
TOTAL 167,868,116 284,877,851 452 745967
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33 Fair Value Disclosures (Continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy into which the recurring fair value measurements are categorised at

31 December 2013, were as follows:

In thousands of Uzbakistan Soums

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cashand cash equivalents

- Cashon hand 6,004,304 = 6,004,304
- Cash balances with CBU (other than

mandatory resene deposit) 88,189,506 - - 88,188,506
- Correspondent accounts and overnight

deposits with other banks = | R B 27 s
- Placements with other banks with original

maturifies ofless than three months B . 2,900,000 2,400,000
Due from other banks

- Mandatory deposits with CBU - 37.435950 - 37,435,950
- Restricted cash - - 27770844 27,770,844
vF'Iac:raf:jrmnls with ather banks with original i | 5.423,475 5423475

malurities of more than three manths

Loans and advances fo customers

- Loans to legal entities - - 181,287 451 181,287,451

- MNetinvestmentin finance lease - - 18,850,053 18,850,053

- Loans o individuals - - 2,394 254 2,394 254
Investment securities available for sale

- Equity securities - - 3317408 3,317 408
- Debt securities - - 50,000 50,000
Other financial assets

- Receivable from insurance policy holders - - 789,268 789,268
- Receivable from insurance agants . - 252,185 252185
- Other recsivables from customers - - 4450,110 4,450,110
TOTAL 94,193,810 64,742,522 247485048 406,421,380
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums Level1 Level 3 Total
Due to other banks

- Liabilites under letters of credit - 51,783 487 51,783 487
- Shor-term placements of other banks = 21,111,028 21,111,028
Customer accounts
- Current/s eflemeant accounts of state and public organisations 5487 504 - 5,487,504
- Term deposits of state and public organisations - 963,984 969,964
- Currentsetilement accounts of other legal entities 194,283.974 . 194,203 074
- Term deposits of other legal entities - 53,511,702 53,511,702
- Currentidemand accounts of individuals 27029872 - 27,029972
- Term deposits of individuals - 45,758 893 457508,.893
Debt securities in issue
- Deposit certificates - 13,880,414 13,880,414
Other financial Fabilities

- Premium payable on reinsurance - 4 563,373 4 563,373
- Accounts payable for co-insurance - 529,020 529,020
- Other payables to suppliers - 1,550,284 1,550,284
TOTAL 226,811,450 193,659,165 420,470,615
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34 Presentation of Financial Instruments by Measurement Category

For the purposes of measurement, 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’,
classifies financial assets into the following categories: (a) loans and receivables; (b) available-for-sale
financial assets; (c) financial assets held to maturity and (d) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL"). Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have two sub-categories: (i) assets
designated as such upon initial recognition, and (i) those classified as held for trading. In addition,
finance lease receivables form a separate category. The following table provides a reconciliation of
financial assets with these measuremant categories as of 31 December 2014;

Loans and Available for Total
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums receivables | sale assets
AMNANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 88.453914 - 98,453,914
Due from other banks 08,453 448 - 98,453 448
Loans and advances o cuslomers 252949413 - 252,949,413
Investment securities available for sale 625374 4572034 5,197 408
Ciher financial asssets 5621985 - 5,621,885
Total financial assets 456,104,134 4,572,034 460,676,168
Total non-financial assets 77,087,230
Taotal assets 537,763,398

The following table provides a reconciliation of financial assets with measurement categories at 31
December 2013:

Loans and Available for Total
In thouzands of Uzbekistan Soums receivables sale assets
ANANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 124 400,382 - 124 400,382
Due from other banks 70,630,269 . 70,630,269
Loans and advances to customers 202 531,758 - 202,531,758
Investment securities available for sale 50,000 3,317 408 3,367 408
Oiher financial assets 5,491,563 B 5,401,563
Total financial assets 403,103,972 3,317 408 406,421,380
Total non-financial assets 85,554,660
Total assets 481,976,040

As of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, all of the Group's financial liabilities were camried at
amortised cost.

35 Related Party Transactions

Parties are generally considered to be related if the parties are under common control, or one party has
the ability to control the other party or can exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial or operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is
directed to the substance of the relatienship, not merely the legal form.
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35 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

Key Immediate Other related Total

management parent parties
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums personnel company
Loans and advances to customers
(contractual interest rate: 12-16%) 26,822 25807239 86,188,322 122,112,383
Investment securities available for sale . - 3,055 429 3,055,428
Customer accounts
[contraciual interest rate; 0-24%) 59,842 1,507 248 55,319,063 56,886,253
Debt securities in issue
(contractual interest rate: 10-13.5%) - - 22350000 22,350,000

Gross amount of loans and advances to customers at 31 Decamber 2014 includes receivable from LLC
"Ekopen Imalat Dis Ticaret Tekstil Ve Makine Urunleri Insaat Ticaret Limited Sirket” in the amount of UZS
20,429,750 thousand related to disposal of subsidiary company LLC “Tashkent Trans Avto” made in June

2014, The repayment schedule includes annual interest rate of 9% and maturity in June 2024,

Aggregate amounts lent to and repaid by related parties during 2014 were:

Key Immediate Other related Total
management parent parties
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums personneal company
Amounts [ent to related parties during the vear 8,455 165288739 30 839 B5B 56,377,182
Amounts repaid by relaled parties during the yaar 7,780 V670,100 14,035,767 21,713,647
The income and expense items with related parties for 2014 were as follows:
Key |Immediate Other ralated Total
management parent parties
In thousands of Uzbekistan Seums personnel company
Interestincome 4419 4025526 14,034,783 18,064,738
Inferest expanse 11,087 - 161,945 173,032
Commission income 2 441,360 4,037,085 4478 447
Other operating expense 434,044 1,008,986 - 1,443,030
Foreign exchange translation gains less losses - - 1,401,282 1,401,282
At 31 December 2014, other rights and obligations with related parties were as follows:
Key Immediate Other related Total
Management parent parties
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums Personnel company
Letters of credit - 1,444 041 53,961,509 55,405,550
Guarantees issued - 600,000 10,576,732 11,176,732
SWAP {commitment to buy USD and sell UZS) - - 489,423 489,423
SWAP ([commitment to buy UZS and sell USD) - - 11,658,619 11.858.619
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35 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

Key Immediate Other related Total
management parent parties
In thougands of Uzbekistan Soums personnel company
Loans and advances to customers
(contractual interest rate: 12-16%) 26,147  17.038.460 70384231 87,448 838
Investment securities available for sale - - 2655428 2655426
Customer accounts
{confraciual interest rate: 0-24%) 36,423 29,027 63.337.6874 63,406,224
Debtsecurilies in issue
{contractual interest rate: 10-13.5%) - - 7.400.000 7,400,000
Aggregale amounts lent to and repaid by related parties during 2013 were:
Key Immediate Other related Total
managemaent parent parties
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums personnel company
Amounts lent to related parties during the year = 11,446,130 71,278,084 B2,724214
Amaounts repaid by related parties during the year 13,368 1,611,042 13,231,186 14,855,616
The income and expense items with related parties for 2013 were as follows:
Key Immediate Other related Total
management parent parties
In thousends of Uzbekistan Soums personnel company
Interestincome 5,850 2,088,220 6,580475 8,683,545
Interest expense 1,725 - - 1725
Caommission Income T 17,962 2,589,607 2817576
Other operating expense 366,065 1,101,030 - 1,467,095
Foreign exchange translation gains less losses - - 489,744 480,744
At 31 December 2013, other rights and obligations with related parties were as follows;
Kay Immediate Other related Total
management parent parties
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums parsanneg| company
Letters of credit . - 51,238,385 51,239,385
Guarantees issued - 600,000 17.651912 18,151,912
Undrawn credit lines - 2737843 - 2737843
SWAP (commiiment to buy UZS and sell USD) - - 4 2086624 4286524
Key management compensation is presentad below:
In thousands of Uzbekistan Soums 2014 2013
Shori-termm benefits:
- Salaries and bonuses 347,235 282,852
= Unified social payment 86,808 73,213
Total 434,044 366,065

59



